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Results of FY2009 ended March 31 2009 42nd Fiscal Year Business Improvement Order

With the Money Lending Business Law to take full effect in just

years time small- and medium-sized lenders in the consumer finance

industry continue to withdraw from the business At the end of March

2002 the outstanding loan balance to consumers amounted to

approximately Y20 trillion and the number of money lenders stood at

26000 firms In contrast at the end of March 2008 the outstanding

loan balance was 18 trillion and the number of money lenders had

fallen sharply to 9115 firms Japans consumer finance industry has

been subjected to harsh business environment due not only to the

revisions to laws and regulations but also to the continuing large

number of refunds of interest factor that has kept profits down

Therefore to solve these management challenges Takefuji took

the lead over its competitors by resolving to eliminate the factors that

have been causing earnings to fluctuate and as result the Company

recorded strategic loss

There were three main reasons for the loss in FY2009 The first

was that we proactively posted the provisions against the claims for

refund of interest received from customers the major factor behind

fluctuating earnings The second was one-time bad debts write-off

in advance based on reexamination of write-off methods To quickly

improve the quality of our loan assets and restore the Company to

sound financial position bad debts were written off in advance The

third was the total liquidation of deferred tax assets In
light

of the cur

rent harsh business environment we judged that it would be extreme

ly
difficult to recover previously recorded deferred tax assets and

therefore liquidated the entire amount

As result we recorded loss of Y256 billion and sincerely apol

ogize to all stakeholders including shareholders and investors for the

tremendous concern that this has caused However we hope that you

will understand that the primary purpose of the strategic loss is to

assure achievement of Medium-Term Business Plan for FY2O1O to

FY2012 which was drafted in order to ensure stable profits after the

full enforcement of the Money Lending Business Law Therefore we

ask for your
continued support

With respect to the Medium-Term Business Plan we have estab

lished specialized committees the Personnel and Organization Reform

Committee Business Operation and Revenues Improvement

Committee and New Business Promotion Committee Coming under

the direct control of the Executive Committee all three of these orga

nizations draw up and execute specific measures and policies

On May 16 2008 TAKEFUJI CORPORATION was imposed with

Business Improvement Order by the Kanto Regional Finance Bureau in

response to which the Company submitted Business Improvement

Plan on June 16 2008 All at Takefuji are currently working together

to steadily implement the Plan to prevent any recurrence of the prob

lem and to regain social trust Viewing compliance as its most impor

tant management issue the Company is working to further improve

its compliance system and ensure that compliance awareness becomes

ingrained in every one of us

Phased Implementation of the Money Lending Business Law

The implementation of the Money Lending Business Law will soon

enter its final phase but please rest assured as everything is going

smoothly Taking effect in June 2009 Article of the Amendment Law

will designate credit information agencies and will initiate national

test for managers of money lending operations With respect to the

specified credit information agency system we are making good prog

ress with the construction of the system that will be needed when the

law takes full effect We are also helping employees to obtain qualifi

cation as managers of money lending operations through compre

hensive system of distance education and e-Iearning We intend to

deploy qualified personnel at all branch offices by the time the law

takes full effect

Our efforts to address the Money Lending Business Law which is

scheduled to take full effect by June 2010 involve promoting asset

quality improvement by turning over loans receivable launch of the

benecere card and raising our brand image through innovative

commercials aiming to become the first choice of customers

Summary

The operating environment surrounding the Company is expected to

remain harsh in the years
ahead Therefore we will maintain our

founding tenet of placing the Customer First While working in uni

son in this first
year

of our Medium-Term Business Plan we will steadily

build foundation to secure stable profits

With humble gratitude for the continued support of all stakehold

ers including shareholders and investors

Source White Paper on Consumer Finance 2008 by JCFA Japan Consumer

Finance Association
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INTERVIEW WITH THE PRESIDENT

Takefuji recorded in FY2009 the fiscal

What were the factors behind the loss

year ended March 31 2009

We have started our Medium-Term Business Plan with the

goal of ensuring stable profits in future Amid harsh busi

ness environment we moved strategically to sharply increase

the provisions for losses for refund of interest received from custom

ers and reexamine credit loss write-off methods As result loss

was posted for the fiscal year ended March 31 2009

Features of FY2009

Increase in provisions for losses for refund of

interest received from customers

Despite being on downward trend after peaking in May 2007 the

number of interest refund claims remained high in FY2009 Due in part

to the implementation of the Medium-Term Business Plan the provi

sions for losses for refund of interest received from customers the major

factor behind fluctuating earnings were taken care of by V229.7 billion

increase

Reexamination of write-off methods

Prior to Takefujis various efforts to improve asset quality to better

cope with the adverse business environment Takefuji made an early

one-time write-off of the Y48.1 billion for partial waiver of principal

for restructured loans that had been accumulating

Liquidation of deferred tax assets

With the payments of refund of interest received from customers

remaining high losses from taxation view point are likely to continue

for the foreseeable future Since it was judged that we would not be

likely to recover previously recorded deferred tax assets the total

amount of Y25.4 billion was liquidated

By the time that the Money Lending Business Law takes effect

planned for June 2010 we will have shifted to high-quality loan

assetsthe focus of our Medium-Term Business Planand will be

making every effort to provide maximum return to all stakeholders

including shareholders and investors

What can you tell us about the enforce

ment of Articles and of the Money
Lending Business Law

Article became effective in June 2009 and Article is

scheduled to take effect by June 2010 With comprehen

sive system Takefuji addresses the phased implementation of

the Money Lending Business Law

Enforcement of Article

Introduction of system for test for managers of money

lending operations

As it will be required to deploy money lending operation managers

holding national qualifications at all operation sites when Article is

enforced we have leveraged in-house training as well as distance

learning and e-learning to train our staff

Introduction of specified credit information agency system

We are constructing new system to cope with registration and ref

erence to specified credit information agencies designated by the

Prime Minister which will be mandatory when Article is enforced

Allowance for Losses for Refund of Interest

Received from Customers
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Enforcement of Article Final Phase

Introduction of aggregate debt control

This law states that money lenders may not lend amounts in excess

of one third of the customers annual income In addition for cer

tain loan amount and over customers must submit proof of their

annual income We are building system that addresses this law by

tracking customers borrowing status from other companies as

necessary

Lowering of the interest rate cap

The maximum lending rate under the Capital Subscription Law will

be 20% or less Currently an interest rate at or below 20% is

applied to all new loan applications We are also reexamining the

interest rate for existing customers as necessary

Deliver clarification in writing before signing contract

In line with an anticipated obligation to deliver in writing clarifi

cation of contract details prior to signing we are developing sys

tem for delivering this information in writing through various

channels including branch offices automatic contract machines and

the Internet

The regulations concerning what is considered interest deemed

interest of the money received from customers by money lenders

will also be partially
revised

Since the promulgation of the Law for Amendment in 2006 we

have steadily upgraded our internal business structure including

employee education and construction of new system to avoid

degrading our customer service

Moving forward Takefuji will do everything possible to enhance

new product development and customer service so that it can better

respond to customer needs

Interest-Rate Structure

40.004%

with Capitai Subscription Law

29.2%

20% or below with interest Rate Restriction Law

June 2000 June 2010 pianned

Enforcement Schedule of Revised Money Lending Business Law

Promo gated

December 20 2006

Revised Law Enforcement

December 19 2007

rEnformmtt of Artic

June 18 2009

With
twcl

and hat years

Enforcement of Art

Legai
deadhne June 18 20101

Possibly earlier

Within one and hat years

III Stricter penaities

Stricter cotection regulations estabhshment

of new Japan FinancLai Services Agency

stricter seif-reguiation etc

Quahfication test for managers of

money iending operations

Raised asset base requrement

Dehvery of contract detaris in

writLng prior to signing

Specified
credit information agency system

aggregate
debt control

Lowering of interest rate cap

One month after promulgation January 20 2007

Implementation of qualification test Mandatory dep oyment

Raised to 920 million Ra sed tv 950 on

Preparations such as build
ng system

Introduct on of specif ed cred nformation agency system application
for specificar Introduct on of aggregate debt control

Preparations such as build
ng sysrem/Considerat on of impact on no sting borrowers

Source Credit Age special edit on JCFA 40th 1969-2009 for the Next Stage pubi shed by Japan Consumer Finance Assoc ation

.-

Akira Kiyokawa

Representative Director President
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INTERVIEW WITH THE PRESIDENT

What can you tell us about Takefujis

financial position and fund procure
ment status

FY 2009 an increasing number of companies declared

bankruptcy or showed loss as result of the global finan

cial crisis and the consequent worsening liquidity The impact

of this crisis has spread to the real economy and the environment for

procuring funds has gone from bad to worse

In light of the adverse financial environment we reduced our

interest-bearing debt in FY 2009 by Vi 73.6 billion in order to lower

our financial expenses As result our interest-bearing debt as of

March 31 2009 stood at V365.7 billion

In FY 2010 we expect borrowings due within one year to reach

V91 .6 billion However in addition to liquidity in hand of V97.9 bil

lion at the end of March 2009 we expect monthly repayments from

customers to amount to approximately V30.0 billion to V35.0 billion

including interest and principal so we recognize that this is well

within our handling capacity

Our management will stress continued financial stability and will

take steps to further strengthen our financial position

Interest-bearing Debt ar

Current PortIon of

Long-term BorrowlngI

9t 5g5

Bonds term Borrow ngs

158567 207174

March 31 20091

What are Takefujis policies regarding
returns to shareholders

Takefuji considers the stable return of profits to shareholders

as its most important management issue and its basic policy is

the continuous stable and long-term distribution of profits

In FY 2009 Takefuji distributed an interim dividend of V30 per

share year-end dividend of V20 per share thus full fiscal year

dividend of V50 per share In addition 3000 thousand shares 2.0%

of shares issued before the cancellation of treasury stock were can

celled in FY2009 and 2729 thousand shares 1.9% of shares issued

were newly acquired with the goal of achieving flexible capital pol

icy and return to shareholders

In FY 2010 we expect to pay an interim dividend of V15 per

share and year-end dividend of Vi per share for full fiscal year

dividend of V30 per share

Because substantial amount of capital was impaired owing to

the increase in allowance for losses for refund of interest received

from customers from this point forward we will work to maximize

shareholder returns by striking balance with the boosting of

retained earnings

What is the outlook for the consumer
finance industry as whole

We foresee that in the years ahead the consumer finance

industry will be forced to contract as result of the lowering

of the interest rate cap and the introduction of aggregate debt

control Because customers are those most affected by belt-tightening

every company is pursuing measures and policies to minimize confu

sion

The reason this industry has grown as far as it has is because it has

responded to the needs of customers provided services to support

their
lifestyles

and gained consumer trust Based on revisions to the

law the whole industry is being asked to revise its business model by

reinforcing educational publicity and counseling services for
repay

ments and development of new products to meet larger number of

customer needs

The whole industry will make ever greater efforts to obey laws and

regulations and win societys trust

TKlHJI CORPORATION
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DISCUSSION OF MEDIUM-TERM BUSINESS PLAN AND CSR MANAGEMENT

Three Pillars to Secure Stable Profits after Full Enforcement of

the Money Lending Business Law

_____ Asset quality improvement Lower NPL ratio

benecere strategies and reduction in past-due loans

Organization reform Streamline to 100 manned branch offices

Pt responses to interest refund claims

Asset Quality Improvement

Ensuring stable profit at interest rates of 18% or less depends on

how quickly and how much loans to customerswith no risk of

interest refund and low default riskwe can bring in While working

to retain high-quality customers and attract new customers through

benecere our new brand card with extra value it is essential that we

reduce past due loans by improving the loan collection system and

reexamining write-off method

The benecere card features the major consumer finance compa

nys first service point system whereby cardholders earn points based

on the payment of interest Earned points can be allocated to the

repayment or transferred to another service point to exchange for

free gifts Because points cannot be earned when interest is not paid

as scheduled the system prevents past-due loans In fact if we com

pare benecere loan with normal loan of interest over 18% benecere

loan is overwhelmingly superior even compared to normal loan at

18% or less interest

In addition Takefuji has added function to the benecere card

that contributes to uniting customers with their communities

through Takefuji Takefuji is donating one yen per customer from

every monthly interest payment to social action groups at no obliga

tion to the customer

We have set our sights on expanding the market share of the

benecere card with improved asset quality before the law takes full

effect in June 2010

We have reexamined the write-off method and timing of the

loan and elevated the Loan Administration Department with more

than 600 employees of the Head Office to the Loan Administration

Division to enhance efficiency of operations

New Applications

Nw of New Appi car 005

35000

30 030

COIIÜII4IJJIiI

FY2008 FY2009

Delinquency Ratio

31-90 Day Pest Due

2.0

.68O

15

10

O.76

0434

Oil

benecere 18% or More

less than 18%

As of March 31 2009

Composition of Direct Cash Loans
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Refund Claims of Interest Received from Customers
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Organization Reform

The Company is taking steps to improve productivity and further cut

costs through the consolidation of the marketing organization and the

optimal allocation of personnel

Although we will reduce the current 210 branch offices to 180 by

the end of September 2009 and to 140 branch offices by the end of

March 2010 ultimately reducing to 100 by the end of March 2012

we will do everything possible to secure the cashing and repayment

channel for the customers

We are also planning to reform organizations of Head Office and

regional branches in accordance with the consolidation of marketing

organization such as branch offices part of which is the elevation of

the Loan Administration Department to the Loan Administration

Division We plan to reduce cost by yi billion for the next three years

with these measures

Prompt Response to Interest Refund Claims

Today we see lingering high level of interest refund claims and we

will carefully watch the trends To efficiently and promptly respond

to this high level of interest refund claims we have taken steps to

reduce total costs by securing personnel and streamlining operations

We have divided the administration division into three sections

namely those sections in charge of collection of written-off debts

interest refund claims and loans intervened by third parties And by

clarifying the final decision-making authority of these divisions we

will promote early settlement through operational streamlining

thereby reducing total costs

Finally Takefuji truly believes that the consumer finance industry

is now entering new age Every company is struggling to weather

the storm With all at Takefuji working in unison Takefuji will achieve

its goals for FY2O1 which we announced in May 2009
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DISCUSSION OF MEDIUM-TERM BUSINESS PLAN AND CSR MANAGEMENT

CSR Philosophy

Earn the trust of people and communities Make positive contributions to society

Take the principle of Customer First

to higher level

What Is true CSR management

We believe that the theme of CSR man

agement is that of gilt

Receiving the trust of customers being

recognized and held in warm regard by local

communities is exactly the same as receiving

gift It is because of these gifts that we

have been able to continue business as

company We are grateful for the gifts and in response we return

such heartfelt gifts through our business activities as increase in

consumption creation of employment and ultimately contribute to

the Japanese economy

We firmly believe that CSR management is the act of keeping

this business cycle running smoothly

What do you think about CSR carried out

through your core business

Lending money is our primary business For example the

Y1O000 that we lend is perfectly ordinary just like any other

Y1O000 have examined how much special value this Y1O000

could hold and have seriously discussed how we can dispel the nega

tive image that many consumers and customers have about debt As

result the benecere card was born The benecere card is not mere

ly card for cash advance but card with added value that allows

cardholders to earn points and contribute to society by using their

cards The kind hearts of customers who have approved of making

social contributions are delivered to local communities by Takefuji as

gift on their behalf

Its revolutionary card that connects us to customers and to

local communities and in turn connects customers to local communi

ties am proud of this CSR activity
that is carried out through our

core business

Emphasize timely and

fair disclosure

Do you mean that you are strengthening CSR

through new product development

Very much so In addition to the benecere card we have

launched the benecere eco green loan that can be used when

buying eco products

Although we consider our corporate mission to be responding to

demands from and extending of loans to as many customers as pos

sible credit is tightening todaynot only at Takefuji but at most

consumer finance companiesjust when the Money Lending

Business Law is about to take full effect For those customers who

are simply under financial pressure in the current environment we

developed the benecere Support Nine product in the hope that

we could loan even small amount of cash to them The product

was developed in the expectation that it could provide safety net

so those that need money dont go running to illegal money lenders

hear that you are putting lot of effort into

compliance is that true

have considered what kind of companies will survive in the

midst of rapid change came to the obvious conclusion that the

only companies to survive will be those that are loved by society and

people at large those companies that fulfill their obligations as

members of society

Today at time when society and consumers are highly aware of

compliance companies cannot survive in the midst of lies fraud and

malfeasance First we must focus on having knowledge of the laws

under which we operate That is why we have been implementing

rigorous employee education and strictly enforcing the attainment of

qualifications in compliance and personal information protection

We will rigorously ensure compliance and at the same time contrib

ute to society through the active pursuit of the Companys primary

business activities and support economic development

Customers

Shareholders

and

Investors

Local

Communities

Encourage social contribution activities

Global

EnvironmentTakefuji

Employees

CSR at Takefuji

Promote eco-friendly business activities

Ensure positive working environment
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Corporate Governance Diagram

General Shareholders Meeting

-__Compliance

Committee

Risk Management

AcdtrR Reporting Committee

Acdrrrpo

Cooperation

Executive Committee

coopeaoni .iv

Advie
Head Office

_______________

gfordi CSR Promotion Office Accnonting Department

_______________ lntenal _______________
Inspection Department

Oadtt

Business Marketing Dioision

wemAuthtSecsoo
nessAdministration

Lega Department

hGessOperatiiI
general Affaim CoOPtn L_2fpfen

gionalothce

The Board of Directors and Board of Corporate Auditors have been

established under the General Shareholders Meeting

The Compliance Committee which includes four outside experts

Convenes evety two months

Takefuji has chosen to be company with Board of Corporate

Auditors as stipulated in Companies Act Although lacking

Corporate Governance Committee Takefujis Board of Corporate

Auditors and the Compliance Committee oversee the Board of

Directors and review corporate governance in its entirety

Board of Corporate Auditors

We have established Board of Corporate Auditors Composed of

four Corporate auditors two of whom are from outside In FY2009

the Board of Corporate Auditors Convened times with an average

attendance rate of 100%

Inspection Department Department for Internal Audit

The Inspection Department which serves as an independent internal

auditing arm audits the Companys administration and operation

systems covering all management activities from the viewpoint of

legality
and efficiency In FY2009 audits were conducted 408 times

in aggregate

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established under the

Board of Directors in order to realize firm risk management system

and fair and appropriate business activities

Takefujis Risk Management Committee comprises three sub

committees In FY2009 the Risk Management Committee convened

total of 30 times

Internal Control Office

The Internal Control Office in accordance with the financial report

ing system of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act evaluates

the appropriateness of the internal rules and implementation in

order to ensure the appropriateness of related operations and pub

lished data

Highly Rated Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Quotient CGQ is comparative assessment

of corporate governance provided by Institutional Shareholder

Services ISS the worlds largest proxy voting services company

whose assessments cover more than 7500 companies throughout

the world Most overseas investors refer to CGQ when making

investment decisions More than 600 Japanese companies are said

to have obtained CGQ rating

The assessment rating dated March 31 2009 received by

Takefuji places it in the top 3.3% of Japanese companies this ranks

Takefuji among the top 20 companies position unrivaled in the

consumer finance industry

Please refer to the URL stated below

http//www.riskmetrics.com/cgq

Director and Corporate Auditor Remuneration

Maximum total remuneration to DirectorsY470 million/year

Maximum total remuneration to Corporate AuditorsY60 million/year

Remuneration to Directors and Corporate Auditors is approved at

the General Shareholders Meeting

April 2008 to March 2009

Directors 14 total remuneration 161 million

Corporate Auditors four total remuneration 40 million

Outside directors and auditors three total remuneration V25 million

Including provisions for retirement benefits of directors and corpo

rate auditors of Y44 million and remuneration of Y3 million by stock

options

TAKLI CORlrtOR\ HON 15
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the Kanto Regional Finance Bureau and submitted Business

Improvement Plan in response during the following month of June

Focusing on establishing internal environment in which all at

Takefuji and employees observe laws and regulations and prioritize

protecting customers interest we have reviewed our ethical char

ter as well as organizational educational personnel evaluation

internal reprimand and other systems Every three months we have

reported on the progress of the plan

We have steadily promoted internal education and implemented

the plan Thanks to these efforts administrative errors have been

dramatically lowered We will take steps to further improve our com

pliance system through ongoing compliance-related activities

Cumulative Number of Employees with

Compliance Officer Certifications

Persons

3000

2500

2000

Business Improvement Plan Summary

Institute and publicize basic policy for Business Improvement Plan

Further develop internal environment to function in the customers

best interests

Enhance awareness of stricter adherence to laws and regulations

through organizational educational and personnel system reviews

and measures to preventsituations unfavorable to the customer

from arising

Review Ethical Charter

Under the existing Ethical Charter and Code of Conduct establish the

TAKEFUJI CORPORATION Management Ethical Charter incorporating

Principles in the Financial Services Industry announced by the Financial

Services Agency

Organizational System Review

Establish monitoring team

Educational System Review

Conduct training by visiting lecturers

Additionally improve rank-based training

Personnel Evaluation System Review

Reflect excellence in dealing with compliance to personnel evaluation

Internal Reprimand System Review

Publicize and Share Ineffective Items

Publicize and share information on ineffective items that were

discovered in internal audits

Ensure the Effective Functioning of Managers of Money Lending

Operations

Prevent Administrative Errors through Strict Two-Person

Verification and System Response

Establish rules

Increased bulk shipment at head office and use of cover letter forms

for windowed envelopes

10 Simplify Administrative Work of Branch Offices

11 Further Improve Internal Audits

12 Conduct Fact-Finding Surveys at Branch Offices

Customer Relations Office

Manners Committee

Compliance Organization Chart

Customer Information Management Section

Compliance Hotline

Sexual Harassment Hotline

CD

CDI

DI

ii

Privacy policy

brochure pamphlet

Compliance Managers

Health and Safety Committee

Us
Ui

-J

LU

Hot
Us

Us

icr
Us

U-

1500

1000
113

___
FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009

Compliance Officer Certfication Persona Information Protection Officer Certificatron

Us

Ic
LU

LU

Us

Us

Ci
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Employee Welfare and Benefits

Health Management
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FACTS I9GURES 2009 MAJOR MANAGEMENT INDICATORS BUSINESS PROCESSES CONSOLIDATED

Contents

30 Profitability

32 Assets

33 Shareholders Equity/Per Share Data

34 Funding

Operational Data Non-Consolidated

35 Direct Cash Loans to Customers

36 Credit Losses Refund of Interest Received from Customers

and Interest Repaid Portion of Principal Impaired

37 Analysis of Loan Portfolio

38 Per Employee Data/Per Branch Office Data

39 Branch Office Network

40 ATM-Related Data

41 New Customer-Related Data

42 Customer Profiles

44 Business Processes

48 Industry Data

These financial statements are based on figures specifically
audited for this annual report
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PROFITABILITY

44781

165031 210612

ii
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

IV Miflioris

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Operating Income 116437 87785 16503111 44781 210612

lThe Company recorded 290.4 billion as operating expenses due to the

provisioning of the allowance for losses from interest refund to

customers in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an

Allowance for Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc

for Interest Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Industry
Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

MiHions

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Ordinary Income 119256 92248 163764 42285 1214669

The Company recorded 290.4 billion as operating expenses due to the

provisioning of the allowance for losses from interest refund to customers

in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an Allowance

for Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc for Interest

Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

IV Milliors

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Net Income 68726 469242481 27413 141 054256 137

An extraordinary loss of y53.1 billion was recorded due to the adoption

of the Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets

An extraordinary loss of 272.0 billion was recorded due to the fact

stated in under Operating Income

An extraordinary loss of V29.7 billion was recorded due to the liquidation

of debt assumption contract

Millions

REVENUES
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OPERATING INCOME

351259

328920

311121
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Ii

150000
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270479

2008-5 26 2I

Millionsi%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Revenues 360121 351259 328920 270479 186349

Interest income on
347474 341463 318491 261981 178337

Direct Cash Loans

Other Financial Income 195 736 3249 3088 2611

Collection from Bad Debts

8213 6559 5284 3312 3235
Pteoiously

Written Off

Other 4240 2501 1897 2098 2166

Reoenue Gromth Rate 6.3 2.5 6.4 17.8 31.1
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90000

Milhons

150000

110

100000
92248

50000 42285

163764 214669

150000

200000

250000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

60000

30000

30000

300000

500000

14105

481274 256137

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

30 TAKEFIJJL CORPORATION



PROFITABILITY

OPERATING INCOME REVENUES RATIO

45

30

15

60

1%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Operating Income

Revenues Ratio
32.3 25.0 50.2 16.6 113.0

The Company recorded 290.4 billion as operating expenses due to the

provisioning of the allowance for losses from interest refund to customers

in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an Allowance for

Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc for Interest

Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

150

2005

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Net Income

Revenues Ratio
19.1 13.4 146.312 5.213 137.5

An extraordinary loss of \53.1 billion was recorded due to the adoption
of accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets

The Company recorded V290.4 billion as operating expenses and 272.0
billion as extraordinary loss due to the

provisioning
of the allowance for

losses from interest refund to customers in accordance with the Auditing

Treatment for Recording an Allowance for Losses from Claims to

Consumer Finance Companies etc for Interest Refunding Japanese

Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Practice

Committee Report No 37
An extraordinary loss of 129.7 billion was recorded due to the

liquidation

of debt assumption contract

Iv Millions %I

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

SGA Expenses
61.2 69.2 143.71 75.7 202.8

Revenues

Operating Expenses 243684 263474 493951 225698 396961

Financial
Expenses 23136 20546 21297 20931 19049

General and

220548 242928 472654 204767 377911
Administrative Expenses

Note SGA Expenses Revenues Ratio Costs and
Expenses excluding expenses

related to financing Revenues 100

The Company recorded 290.4 billion as operating expenses due to the

provisioning of the allowance for losses from interest refund to customers

in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an Allowance for

Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc for Interest

Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

32.3

ORDINARY INCOME REVENUES RATIO

16.6

33.1

45

30

15

60

120

2005

113.0

2006 2007 2008 2009

120

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

%I

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Ordinary Income/
11

Revenues Ratio
33.1 26.3 49.8 15.6 115.2

The Company recorded Y290.4 billion as operating expenses due to the

provisioning of the allowance for losses from interest refund to customers

in accordance with the
Auditing Treatment for Recording an Allowance for

Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc for Interest

Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

NET INCOME REVENUES RATIO

30

20

10

19.1

SGA EXPENSES REVENUES RATIO

200

vs

140

120

1437

160

40

80

146.3 137.5

2006 2007 2008 2009 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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PROFITABILITY

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Milliorisl%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Advertising Expenses
6479 12298 9826 4853 4250

Revenues 360121 351259 328920 270479 186349

Advertising Expenses
1.8 3.5 3.0 1.8 2.3

Revenues

ASSETS

iS Millions

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

TotalAssets 1903991 1770909 1583172 1392899 958464

Current Assets1 644267 1552258 1447034 1263789 886541

FixedAssets 176789 145960 136137 129110 71923

Deferred Charges 82935 72692

Currenttatio% 1017.5628.4 1094.0 1108.6 714.0

OtherAssetsRatio% 18.4 15.0 29.7 29.8 48.1

1%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Ordinary Income

TotalAssets

6.3 5.0 9.812 2.8 18.3

Net Income

Total Assets ROA
3.6 2.611 28.712 0.9 21.8

Notes Ordinary Income/Total Assets Yearly Average 100

Net Income/Total Assets Yearly Average 100

The other expenses of V53.1 billion was recorded due to the adoption of

accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets

The Company recorded V290.4 billion as operating expenses and 272.0

billion as extraordinary loss due to the provisioning
of the allowance for

losses from interest refund to customers in accordance with the Auditing

Treatment for Recording an Allowance for Losses from Claims to Consumer

Finance Companies etc for Interest Refunding Japanese Institute of

Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Practice Committee Report No

37

PERSONNEL EXPENSES REVENUES RATIO ADVERTISING EXPENSES REVENUES RATIO

10

6L/

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

3.5

3.0

2.3

1.8

IV Miions/%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Personnel Expenses 24924 22034 20581 19785 16894

Revenues 360121 351259 328920 270479 186349

Personnel Expenses

Revenues%
6.9 6.3 6.3 7.3 9.1

TOTAL ASSETS

Millions

2500000

2000000

1500000

ORDINARY INCOME TOTAL ASSETS RATIO NET INCOME TOTAL ASSETS RATIO

10

1000000

500000

5.0

958464

10

30

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Notes Current RatioCurrent Assets Fiscal year-end/Current Liabilities

Fiscal year-end xl 00

Other Assets RatioOther Assets Fiscal year-end/Shareholders

Equity Fiscal year-end xlOO
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SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Milions/%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Shareholders Equityl 960719 973626 457714 43373412 149507

Equitytatio% 50.5 55.0 28.9 31.1 15.6

Notes Including acquisition of treasury stock

The Company recorded 51488.8 billion of the allowance for losses from

interest refund to customers in accordance with the Auditing Treatment

for Recording an Allowance for Losses from Claims to Consumer

Finance Companies etc for Interest Refunding Japanese Institute of

Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Practice Committee Report

No 37

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Net Income per Share 487.94 333.1 813420.4212 100.631311880.05

Adjusted Yearly Weighted

Average Number of Shares 140723 140706 140706 140172 136239

Outstaodlng Thousand

Notes 1Other expenses of 5153.1 billion were recorded due to the adoption

of the Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets

2The Company recorded 51290.4 billion as operating expenses and

51272.0 billion as extraordinary loss due to the
provisioning

of the

allowance for losses from interest refund to customers in accordance

with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an Allowance for Losses

from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc for Interest

Refi.jnding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37
3An extraordinary loss of 5129.7 billion was recorded due to the

liguidation of debt assumption contract

1%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Return on Equity 7.4 491 67.212 3.213 87.8

Notes Return on Equity Net Income Shareholders Equity Yearly average 100
Other expenses of 5153.1 billion were recorded due to the adoption of the

Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets

The Company recorded 51290.4 billion as operating expenses and 51272.0 billion

as extraordinary loss due to the provisioning of the allowance for losses from

interest refund to customers in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for

Recording an Allowance for Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance

Companies etc for Interest Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public

Accountants Industry Audit Practice Committee Report No 37
An extraordinary loss of 5129.7 billion was recorded due to the liquidation of

debt assumption contract

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Shareholders Equity
6827.41 6919.26 3252.981 3151.03 1108.12

per Share

Dividends

per
Share

100.00 230.00 230.00 180.00 50.00

The Company recorded 51488.8 billion of the allowance for losses from interest

refund to customers in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an

Allowance for Losses from Claims to Consumer Finance Companies etc for

Interest Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

Millions

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY EQUITY RATIO
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CREDIT LOSSES

REFUND OF 1NTEREST RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST REPAID PORTION OF PRINCIPAL IMPAIRED

INTEREST REPAID PORTION OF PRINCIPAL IMPAIRED

Millions

75000

60000

45000

30000

15000

2005

Millions

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Interest Repaid

Portion of Principal 17321 44669 61242 67531

Impaired

This item had been included in write-offs until FY2005/3

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

150430 151262

143998

WRITE-OFFS

Millions

120000

90000

60000

30000

144404

Millions

150000

120000

90000

60000

30000

20

16

12

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Millions

Allowance for

137000 150430 151262 143998 96994
Doubtful Accounts

Millions/%

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Write-oHs 112858 91183 100279 98248 144404l

Write-offs
7.19 5.92 7.00 8.22 16.75

Outstanding Loans

Collection from Bad Debts

8213 6559 5284 3312 3235
Previously Written Off

Net Credit Losses 104646 84624 94994 94936 141169

Net Credit
6.67 5.49 6.63 7.94 16.38

Loss Ratio

REFUND OF INTEREST RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS

Note As for waivered portion of principal of restructured Loans which was written off at the ful

repayment accumulated P46 billion was collectively written off

Millions

150000

120000

90000

60000

30000

145030

67531

18699

10981

2005 2006 2007

Millions

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Refundof Interest

10981 18699 64050 99154 145030
Received from Customers
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ANALYSIS OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

1000000

750000
682445 651814

547768

500000

320997

250000
174316

250000

500000

511083

398109 296271

750000 579629 572036

1000000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Millions

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Write-offs 112820 108456 100216 98173 1443311

Interest Repaid

Portion of
Principal

44667 61235 67527

Impaired

Outstanding
10004 28678 108198 236520 333811

OUTSTANDING LOANS BY TYPE MONTHLY AVERAGE

Millions Billions

100000 2000

80000 1540

40000

1195

1200

20000

862

800

2005

400

Additional Loans Under

Existing Contracts

2006 2008 2009

Loans Under New Contracts

Repeat Contracts

Total Outstanding Loans

Year-End Balance

Millions

NEW LOANS AND NET INCREASE EXCLUDING CREDIT CARD

Loans

Write-offs

Repayments

Note As for waivered portion of principal of restructured loans which was written off at the full

repayment accumulated V46.1 billion was collectively written off

Outstanding Loan

anges
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PER EMPLOYEE DATA

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Revenue per Employee 103 110 112 103 77

Operat ng
Income

per Employee 33 27 57 17 88
Ordinary Income per Employee 34 28 57 15 89
Net Income per Employee 19 12 165 06

PER BRANCH OFFICE DATA

DIRECT CASH LOANS TO CUSTOMERS PER MANNED BRANCH OFFICE

OMiions

4OOOs

3200

2400

r600

800

Direct Cash Loans no Customers

per
Manned Branch Office

2971 2945 3040 3320 4102

Number of Customer

Accounts
per

Manned 4626 4442 4513 5093 705t

Branch Off ce

____________

Number of Manned Branch

Offices at Fiscal Year-End
528 523 471 360 210

Millions

300

217
200

122

100

352 1008

500

1000

2005 2006 2007 2008

Mi5 non

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Revenue
per

676 669 696 748 883
Manned Branch Office

Operating Income
per 217 166 352 122 1008Manned Branch Office

Ordinary Income per 223 172 352 113 1027
Manned Branch Office

Net Income
per

126 75 1022 36 1223
Manned Branch Office

DIRECT CASH LOANS TO CUSTOMERS PER EMPLOYEE PROFITABILITY PER EMPLOYEE

Miii ons

48

36

24

12

Mi ions

500

400

300 ii

200 4Lu

roc

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3

Direct Cash Loans to

451 486 490 455 357
Customers

per Employee

Number of Customer

Accounts per EmpIoyee
703 733 728 698 613

Number of Employees
3476 3171 2920 2625 2415

at Fiscal Year-End

90

te Mi hnns

57 88

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Millions

PROFITABILITY PER MANNED BRANCH OFFICE

4102

2009

Mi lions

Fiscal Year Ended 2005/3 2006/3 2007/3 2008/3 2009/3
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BUSINESS PROCESSES

The consumer finance industry
is built around convenience achieved with quick loans which require

neither
security

nor

guarantees In order to offer such loans the Company has developed the following standards and procedures drawing

on experience accumulated during its years
in the field

Credit limits and conditions vary by occupation age income and other relevant factors based on extensive data on past

repayment histories

Identity employment address and other key items of information are carefully
confirmed

The prospective customers creditworthiness is determined at the time of loan application in part by running checks with

Takefuji Information Center which manages database on Takefuji customers and the individual credit information center

of the Federation of Credit Bureaus of Japan Loans are not extended to individuals who are found to have previously

defaulted or who already hold
large

number of loans In March 1987 the exchange of personal credit information on

customers was initiated between the banking credit sales and consumer finance industries ri order to further reduce the

risk of non-performing loans

4The yen limit of the loans is calculated based on both the customers demonstrated creditworthiness and by reference to

standards set according to yearly
income The average amount of new loan on first application currently

stands at around

V159 thousand The credit limit may be increased depending on such factors as customers payment records The average

balance of loans outstanding per customer was around V583 thousand as of March 2009

The Company adopts fixed payment date system

Fixed payment date

For the customers convenience the payment date is established as one of the three days following his or her monthly

payday Thus the customer can always make the monthly payment on the same convenient date

Payment amount

Minimum payment amounts are determined and fixed according to the size of the loan and number of payments

Administration of receivables

Delinquency

The day following the agreed payment date is considered the date when delinquency occurs and the days of delinquency

are calculated accordingly

Renewal of due date

The due date is revised to the next payment date when

payment of one months principal and interest due is received or

payment of an amount greater than the interest due by the following payment date is received

Overview of Takefujis comprehensive credit checks As of March 31 2009

The Federation of Credit Japanese Bankers Association

Credit information Center Corp

Bureaus of Japan
Personai Credit information Center

Association of 33 independent

credit information centers
Agency for the coflection of consumer

Type of

Takefujis independent
Center for the coHection of credit information

inciuding companies and

information center personai credit information The shinpan
and the credit card

organization cooperatioe associations

Began operations in t9B8 industryBegan operations in Juiy t983
Began operations in

Began operations in September t984

september t976

Number of 2lt offices in Japan inciuding t255 companies and 2792
t35B companies t056 companies

members internet office nffices

Purposes Membership Membership Membership

Estabhshed to fit need for Consumer finance companies Primariiy banks financiai Primariy consumer credit and credit card

communication between institutions and aftihated companies

credit information centers companies

users which did not euist preoiousiy

To anoid setting up Takefuji

accounts at more than one

branch for the same individuai

Accumuiated data
tO700000 hstings 23750000 hstings 97t50000 listings 502720.000 iistings

Approoimate

inquiries and Members 950000 Members t2400000

responses per 52000 5540000 Partnering inteiigence Partnering intehigence agencies

month
agencies 5t0000 t620000

Approoimate

Method of
Onhne inquiries and responses 03 Dedicated terminais 03 Onhne reai-time 03 Online transmission

inquiry and
through computer network @3 CPU connection EDP and terminai 03 Computer

and Cpu connection

response
33 Magnetic media @3 Fiie transfer 03 CMT and other methods

Note The Federation of Credit Bureaus of Japan changed its name to Japan Credit Information Reference Center Corp and took over credit

information business of 33 reference centers of former Federation of Credit Bureaus of Japan

Loan Review Procedures

Payment

Individual Credit

Information

Organizations

rganzation
Takefuji information Center
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BUSINESS PROCESSES

Purpose

In order to prevent the increase of individuals who take on excessive borrowings from multiple sources the Company utilizes

four credit information organizations to make meticulous identification of problem credit risks and to protect consumers

Careful observance of these basic premises helps the Company to maintain sound operations

Takefuji Information Center

Real-time information on customer accounts eliminates the
possibility

that an individual may open multiple accounts by

visiting more than one Takefuji branch office

The Federation of Credit Bureaus of Japan

This center which
supplies

information to consumer finance companies comprises 33 independent credit information

centers linked by an online computer network throughout Japan to collect personal credit information

Personal Credit Information Center of the Japanese Bankers Association JBA
This is banking information center operated by JBA securing consumer personal credit information on nationwide

level

Credit Information Center Corp

Supported by trusts from members and consumers this center strives to build better protection for personal credit

information Together with this the center aims to contribute to the creation of an affluent sound society through its

activities which strive to develop healthy consumer credit business

Note At the implementation of Article of the Amendment Law Specified Credit Information Agency System was introduced

The system requires to specify credit information agencies which meet certain requirements such as appropriate management

of information and acquiring information of loans from all non-banking lenders At the full enforcement of the Amendment

Law money lenders are required to utilize credit information from all the specified credit information agencies when concluding

contracts

Three basic strategies to minimize the risk of delinquency

Appropriate credit lines are established based on the Companys accumulated data and know-how

Payment dates are set to maximize customer convenience

In the event of non-payment loan collection efforts are made promptly and efficiently

Loan collection operations

Type of Before payment date -90 days in More than 90
days

in Written-off accounts Refund of interest received
Voluntarily legally administered

delinquent Excluding delinquencies arrears arrears from
bankrupt

and court-led

account involving third party customers rehabilitation delinquencies

Responsible Branch office/Regional Branch office Regional loan
Loan Administration Division

unit loan collection office collection office

Loan Administration

Division at head office
1st Loan Administration Dept 2nd Loan Administration Dept 3rd Loan Administration Dept

Description Written notice of Contact by Contact by telephone Contact by telephone and
Negotiations of Collection administration

repayment date five telephone and and
postal

mail
postal

mail
delinquencies involving

and
negotiations

of

days prior postal
mail Contact by e-mail attorneys and judicial delinquencies involving

Telephone reminder on Contact by Payment request and scriveners attorneys and judicial

repayment date e-mail
legal proceedings scriveners

Internal restrictions on collection activities

Request by telephone

Frequency total of three calls per day Maximum per customer

Time from 810 am to 850 p.m but

Request for one day past
due loans should be made after 830 a.m and morning calls are prohibited

when

the customers working hours are at night

Request by written notice or e-mail

Frequency There must be three-day interval between two requests Not allowed to contact customer asking for

repayment other than at home address and without proper reasons

Maximum Lending Rate

MLR 60

Annual interest rate Annual interest rate

18.00% 08/1 20.00% 09/5

96 00 07 08 09

2004/3 2005/03 2006/03 2007/03 2008/03 2009/03

Actualyieldperannum% 22.50 21.74 21.66 20.92 19.29 16.53

Debt Collection

50

40

MLR by Capital

Subscription Law

Annual interest rate 40.004%

91/11

30 L__
20

Annual interest rate 29.20% 90/1

Takefujis
MLR

10

Annual interest rate 29.20%

00/6

Annual interest rate 27.375%

96/2

90

Average Yield on Direct

Cash Loans to Customers

Interest Income/Average

Outstanding Balance

91
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Thousands of .S

Millions of
yen dollars

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2009

Direct cash loans to customers 861517 Vi 195328 Vi 43 1848 Vi 540046 Vi 568725 $8790990

Revenues 186349 270479 328920 351259 360121 1901520

Income loss before income taxes 229936 10542 436773 70402 115940 2346286

Net income loss 256137 14105 481274 46924 68726 2613643

Total net assets 149648 433775 457715 972257 960718 1527020

Total assets 958464 1392899 1583172 1696849 1821056 9780245

Number of accounts thousands 1481 1833 2126 2323 2443

Number of manned branches 210 360 471 523 528

Numberof employees
2434 2643 2938 3184 3491

dollar amounts are translated from yen for convenience only
at the rate of V98US$ mean telegraphic transfer rate on March 31 2009 offered by prime Japanese bank as

described in Note of the Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND CASH FLOWS

Financial Review

As referred to under Operating Environment on page 59 the Japa

nese economy entered serious recessionary phase during FY2009

ended March 31 2009

In this environment TAKEFUJI CORPORATION the Company

adopted measures during FY2009 to ensure that business is conducted

in sound and stable manner for the foreseeable future Firstly credit

was extended to our customers on very selective basis with view

toward the worsening economic environment as well as the total credit

limit for each customer to be implemented under the revised Money

Lending Business Law which will come into effect by June 2010 Sec

ondly we introduced new product under the new benecere brand

name in order to offer attractive interest rates to preferred customers in

terms of credit standings Thirdly we have continued the rationalization

of the operating platform by closing down manned and unmanned

branch offices in order to reduce costs Finally during the third-quarter

of the fiscal year we decided to provide an additional amount for inter

est refund claims from customers and take additional write-offs for cer

tain loans to customers As result of these initiatives the balance of

direct cash loans to customers at the end of FY2009 was V861517 mil

lion down 27.9% from FY2008 revenues for the year totaled Vi 86349

million down 31.1% from the FY2008 operating loss amounted to

V210612 million whereas operating income of V44781 million had

been recorded in FY2008 and net loss was V256137 million contrast

ing with net income of V14105 million recorded in FY2008

Revenues

Revenues decreased by 31.1% to V186349 million US$1902 million

in FY2009 compared with V270479 million for FY2008 principally as

result of Y83644 million decrease in interest income on direct cash

loans The average amount of loans outstanding during FY2009 was

V1078600 million decrease of 20.6% from the previous year In

addition during FY2009 the average yield on loans to customers

declined to 16.53% compared to 19.29% for FY2008 Principally

through the introduction of the new loan card benecere which is

targeted towards customers with good credit standing the amount of

loans with interest rates of 18% or lower accounted for 43.3% of total

loans outstanding as of the end of FY2009 compared to just 10.4% at

the end of the previous fiscal year Loan balance in all of the other

higher interest rate categories declined during FY2009 The average

balance of loan per customer decreased to V582000 as of the end of

FY2009 compared with V652000 for the previous fiscal year-end

Operating Expenses

Costs and expenses amounted to V396961 million compared with

V225698 million for the previous fiscal year due principally to provisions

for losses for refund of interest received from customers increasing from

V57854 million for FY2008 to V229662 million for FY2009 This signifi

cant increase reflects an actual trend of refund claims that exceeded the

Outstanding Loans
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Refund of Interest Received from Customers

MIhons

10000

120000

90000

60000

30000

18699

10 98

200S 2006

Credit Losses

Credit LosseslOutstanding Loans -I

MIions

150000

120000

90000

60000

30000

1568725
1540046

Th._ 1431848

Mu non

2000000

1600000

1200000

800000

400000

Accounts

Thousands

3000

2400

1800

1200

600

15

12

TAKEFUJI CORPORATION 51



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND CASH FLOWS

forecast used to calculate the previous level of the allowance Credit costs

mostly provision of allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to

V97400 million for FY2009 an increase of 7.1% from the previous fiscal

year Although the Company changed its policy relating to the write-off

of bad debt during the third quarter of FY2009 most of the debt written

off under the new policy had been fully reserved against under the previ

ous policy resulting in no significant impact over the allowance for

doubtful accounts as whole Other operating expenses were V50850

million during FY2009 compared with V55930 million for FY2008

mainly reflecting the continued reduction in the number of branch

offices Funding costs decreased from V20930 million in FY2008 to

Vi 9049 million in FY2009 reflecting decline in the average amount of

debt outstanding during FY2009 compared with the previous fiscal year

Operating Income Loss

As result of the revenues and operating expenses for FY2009

described above operating loss for the period was V210612 million

US$2149 million During FY2008 operating income had amounted

to V44781 million

Other Expenses

Costs relating to the redemption of bonds in an amount of Vi0475

million as well as V2165 million of expenses relating to commitment

facility
cancellation were also recorded in FY2009

As result of the foregoing loss before income taxes during

FY2009 was V229936 million During FY2008 income before income

taxes of V10542 million had been posted

Net Income Loss

Net loss amounted to V256137 million US$2614 million for the fis

cal year ended March 31 2009

Dividends

The full-year
dividend for the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 decreased

by V130 to V50 per share In addition million shares 2.0% of total

shares outstanding prior to the cancellation of treasury stock were can

celled during FY2009 and an additional 2729 thousand shares 1.9%

of total shares outstanding were acquired during the fiscal year

Financial Condition

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 total assets decreased

by Y434435 million from the end of previous fiscal year principally

due to the decline in the balance of direct cash loans to customers of

V33381 million In addition during the third quarter of the fiscal

year the Company decided to provide an additional V186320 million

for losses for refund of interest received from customers As result

net loss for the fiscal year amounted to V256137 million causing net

assets to decline to V149648 million

On the other hand interest-bearing debt decreased to V365741

million as of March 31 2009 from V539364 million at the end of the

previous fiscal year decrease of Vi 73623 million In addition to

cash generated from the collection of principal and interest from cus

tomers portion of short-term investments and leasehold deposits

and other assets were used to repay such debt As of March 31 2009

the Company held V47870 million in cash on hand and at banks and

time deposits as well as V49922 million of short-term investments

which can be used to service obligations maturing in the future

Balance Sheets

Assets

Assets at the end of the current consolidated fiscal year totaled

V958464 million down 31.2% from the previous consolidated year-

end total assets having decreased by V434435 million from the end

of previous consolidated fiscal year due principally to decreases of direct

cash loans to customers V33381 million short-term investments

V33997 million and deferred income tax assets V25364 million

Liabilities

Liabilities were V808816 million down 15.7% from the previous

consolidated year-end decrease of Vi 50308 million from the end

of the previous consolidated fiscal
year

due to decrease of current

and non-current portion of long-term debt Y173623 million which

included early repayment of part of long-term debt conducted at

the same time as commitment facility cancellation and decrease of

bonds against certain increasing factors such as the issuance of con

vertible bond-type bonds with subscription rights to shares of V70000

million and an increase of allowance for losses for refund of interest

received from customers V17i0i million

Net Assets

Net assets were V149648 million down 65.5% from the previous

consolidated year-end decrease of V284127 million from the end

of the previous consolidated fiscal year due to V287606 million

decrease in retained earnings

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year under review on

consolidated basis hereinafter called the Funds amounted to

V97862 million down by V55609 million compared with the end of

the previous consolidated fiscal year The situations and cash inflows by

activity
for the consolidated fiscal year under review were as follows

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The Funds provided by operating activities totaled Vi 50020 million

Vi 87601 million had been provided in the previous consolidated fis

cal year The principal inflows were V29627i million of direct cash
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loans collected from customers based on our core business of con

sumer finance and V40976 million of proceeds from decrease of

long-term deposits major outflow was Vi 74297 million of direct

cash loans made to customers

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

The Funds used in investing activities amounted to V21 10 million

V255 million had been used in the previous consolidated fiscal year

The principal outflows were Vi007 million for purchases of tangible

fixed assets and V271 million for purchases of intangible fixed

assets major inflow was Vi499 million in proceeds from sales of

investment securities

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

The Funds used in financing activities amounted to V203193 million

Vi 27397 million yen had been used in the previous consolidated fiscal

year The principal sources were as follows Vi 77307 million for repay

ments of long-term borrowings V82400 million for redemption of

bonds Vi 6461 million for cash dividends paid and V70000 million in

proceeds from issuance of bonds with subscription rights to shares

Investment Considerations

Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements

This annual report CSR report of TAKEFUJI CORPORATION Takefuji

or the Company includes statements that are not historical or current

facts and are forward-looking statements

The words believe anticipate project plan expect

intend will likely result looking forward or will continue

and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements These

statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could

cause actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and

those presently anticipated or projected TAKEFUJI CORPORATION cau

tions readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking

statements which speak only to their respective dates The following

are some of the factors that could affect financial performance or could

cause actual results to differ materially from estimates contained in or

underlying the Companys forward-looking statements

General economic conditions in the consumer loan industry

Fluctuations in the economic credit interest rate or foreign currency

environment in Japan and abroad

Levels of
activity

within the national and international credit market

Competitive conditions and pricing levels

Legislative or regulatory developments

Technological developments

Changes in tax laws

The effects of mergers acquisitions and divestitures and

Uncertainties that have not been identified at this time

The Company undertakes no obligation to correct or update any

forward-looking statement if it later becomes aware that such results

are not likely to be achieved

The ability of the Company to achieve earnings growth in the

future is subject to variety of factors related to the Japanese econ

omy the consumer finance industry and management of the Com

pany
These factors primarily involve changes in the market for con

sumer loans and the default rate of customers competition from

other lenders legal limits on interest rates charges by the Company

funding availability
for the Company operations and the overall sta

tus of the Company

Operating Environment

During the consolidated fiscal year under review deterioration of cor

porate performance emerged in the Japanese economy due to the

adverse effects on the real economy caused by financial
instability

that

had its origins in the United States and global recession Japans econ

omy faced serious recessionary phase exemplified by falling
stock

prices and downturn in consumer consumption caused by deterio

rating employment situation

Consumer Finance Market

All companies in the consumer finance industry are under pressure to

alter their revenue and earnings structure including the promotion of

stricter lending criteria and efficient operations in anticipation of full

enforcement of the revised Money Lending Business Law Further

more the industry finds itself in severe business environment as

exemplified by the number of interest refund claims that remain at

high level and small- and medium-sized lenders that continue to with

draw from the business

Business Risk and Other Forms of Risk

The major business risks that the Company and its subsidiaries the

Group confront and that could potentially have significant impact

on results the stock price and the financial positions of the Group as

well as other risks that are regarded as important to investors invest

ment decisions are as follows

The Money Lending Business Law

With respect to its principal business namely consumer finance the

Company is registered as moneylender under the Money Lending

Business Law by which the non-bank lending industry in Japan is reg

ulated Takefuji is required to comply with the regulations set out in

that law which encompass all aspects of the consumer finance busi

ness These regulations cover for example the prohibition of exces

sive lending the indication and advertising of loan terms the prohibi

tion of exaggerated advertisements the issuance of documents when

concluding contracts the delivery of receipts the provision of account
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books restrictions on designated notarial deeds the regulation of

loan collection the return of loan contracts the display of signs and

transfers of claims In addition the enforcement provisions of the

Money Lending Business Law require Takefuji to conduct business

mindful of the Comprehensive Supervisory Guidelines for Loan Provid

ers and the Self-regulatory Basic Rules Regarding the Conduct of

Money Lending Business Operations of the Japan Financial Services

Association JFSA

Deeming compliance to be its most important managerial chal

lenge we are working to build highly effective compliance frame

work that will bolster compliance by making changes to our organiza

tional structure offering training to employees and creating system

with self-correcting effect However should part of the Takefuji

Group fail to comply with the Money Lending Business Law it will not

merely face administrative sanctions or penalties its financial position

and business results may be undermined by the infringement

Following promulgation of the Amendment of the Money Lending

Business Control and Regulation Law on December 20 2006 the amend

ment is being enforced in four phases from the enforcement of Article

to the enforcement of Article Article which increases the penalty for

unregistered operations tightening of anti loan-shark measures was

enforced on January 20 2007 one month after promulgation

Subsequently Article became effective on December 19 2007

one year after promulgation which changed the name of the law

from the Money Lending Business Control and Regulation Law to the

Money Lending Business Law The salient points of the amendment

are that it strengthens administrative measures including the estab

lishment of business improvement orders tightens regulation of solici

tation and collection activities expands the scope of prohibited activi

ties provides for the establishment of the new JFSA and the

formulation of self-regulatory rules and makes it obligatory to agree

to the perusal of accounts

On the subject of business improvement orders the amendment

states that in connection with the conduct of business by lenders if

considered necessary to protect the interest of borrowers etc the

supervisory authorities may to the extent necessary order change in

business method or other measures necessary to improve business

conduct and there is the possibility that such business improvement

orders will be issued with greater flexibility than the business suspen

sion orders that were available prior to the amendment Furthermore

the new JFSA is powerful self-regulatory body that has been granted

the authority to investigate and supervise its members and given con

siderable discretionary authority in order to increase the effectiveness

of self-regulatory rules On May 16 2008 business improvement

order was imposed on the Company by the Kanto Regional Finance

Bureau on the basis of Article 24 6-3 of the Money Lending Business

Law Law No 32 of 1983 relating to the provision of account books

and the delivery of receipts

Article became effective on June 18 2009 within one and half

years of enforcement of the Money Lending Business Law and under

the amendment measures such as the specification of credit informa

tion agencies and the establishment of new manager of money lend

ing operations system will be implemented Then within two and half

years of the enforcement of the Money Lending Business Law Article

will be enforced The main points of this amendment are the lowering

of the maximum
legal lending rate under the Law Concerning the Reg

ulation of Receiving of Capital Subscription Deposits and Interest on

Deposits Capital Subscription Law and the introduction of aggre

gate debt control explained below in 3.A Risks associated with the

regulation of loan interest rates and aggregate debt control

In the light of the amendments outlined above Takefuji is currently

conducting review of its lending criteria but there is possibility

that these amendments may seriously affect the number of new loan

customer accounts and direct cash loans to customers

As result of the phased implementation of the Money Lending

Business Law the Company will be subject to greater business regula

tion than before and is currently taking action in areas such as its

account books work flow and information systems but these amend

ments may affect the Companys performance

Risks associated with claims for refund of interest

received from customers

Takefujis loan interest rates applied to some customers exceed the upper

limit for interest rates prescribed by Article Paragraph of the Interest

Rate Restriction Law

Although this excess portion was regarded as valid historically as

long as the application requirements provided in Article 43 of the

Money Lending Business Control and Regulation Law were fulfilled

defense in case of claim for refund of interest received from custom

ers has become extremely difficult since the Supreme Court handed

down decision that ruled out the voluntary element one of the appli

cation requirements on January 13 2006 The amount of refund of

interest received from customers increased rapidly after the judgement

In
light

of the above developments the Company calculates the

allowance for interest refund losses in accordance with the Industry

Audit Committee Report No 37 Auditing Treatment on Recording of

Allowance for Losses from Claims for Interest Refunds by Consumer

Finance Companies etc published by the Japanese Institute of Certi

fied Public Accountants JICPA on October 13 2006 and reviewed

and readjusted the allowance in conservative manner at the 3rd

quarter posting Vi 86320 million of provision for the three months of

the third quarter alone leaving V403357 million of allowance bal

ance at the year-end

As for interest refund claims trends indicate that the level may

remain unchanged for some time in the future Should the credit

crunch and the deteriorating economy stemming from the current
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financial crisis cause an increase of intervention cases including debt

arrangement and consequent increase of refund claims of interest

the business results of the Group could be significantly affected

Although the Supreme Court ruled in January and March 2009

that unless there are exceptional conditions negative prescription of

rights of interest refund claims starts when the last transaction day

ends no impact on our business results is currently observed How

ever the future outcome of
judicial rulings could cause an increase of

interest refund claims with commensurate adverse effect on the

Groups business results

Risk associated with downgrade of our credit ratings

and impact on financing activities

As of the end of FY2009 the Company maintained long-term credit rat

ings of Baa2 and BBB- from Moodys Investors Service Moodys and

Standard Poors respectively On May 28 2009 however Moodys

downgraded the rating to Baa3 and placed the Company under further

review for another possible downgrade Further Standard Poors

downgraded the rating to BB on June 15 2009

The most recent downgrade by Standard Poors gave
rise to con

flict against covenant for early redemption and other events under the

consumer loan receivables trust agreement with respect to the true-

sale securitization facility extended by Bull Capitol Co Ltd initially in

July 2005 Total balance of debt under the said securitization facility

as of March 31 2009 was Vi 09263 million consisting of current

portion of long-term debt of V35598 million and non-current portion

of long-term debt of V73665 million To date the repayment of such

debt has been scheduled in equal quarterly installments from January

2009 through April 2012 Unless the creditor for the securitization

facility waives the rights of demanding the early redemption the debt

is expected to be
fully repaid using all interest and principal payments

from direct cash loans entrusted to the consumer receivables trust for

the benefit of the creditors in approximately nine months

Management of the Group has focused on the strengthening of

the financial position and has worked towards reducing the amount

of future financial obligations using various measures including pre

payment of interest-bearing debt In light
of the possibility that the

recent downgrades negatively affect the Companys ability
to execute

its Medium-Term Business Plan management is taking various mea

sures to eliminate potential threats to the Companys liquidity position

in the future including the commencement of negotiation with the

creditor on possible amendment to the relevant contracts

Despite such efforts however there is no assurance that the Com

pany can successfully negotiate amendments to the funding contracts

affected by the recent downgrades In addition in the event that the

Companys credit rating is downgraded further the Companys fund

ing activities may be negatively affected

Other risks

Other business risks are as follows

Risks associated with changing regulatory

environment

Risks associated with the regulation of loan interest rates and

aggregate debt control

Impact of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law the

construction of internal control etc

Impact of the Law Concerning the Protection of Personal

Information

Impact of Other Business-related Laws

Fund procurement and interest rates of funds

procured

Restrictive financial covenant on fund procurement

Call related to funding

Risk related to fluctuation of interest rates on fund procurement

The problem of people with excessive debts

Transition of operating results

Risks associated with economic trends

Risk of growth in write-offs of bad debts

Risk concerning market competition

Risks associated with the concentration of businesses

Disruptions and malfunctions in information network

systems internet service and other technology-based

systems

Fires and natural disasters

Protection of customer data

Losses resulting from computer viruses

Losses caused by forged cards etc

Asset risk

Risks associated with exchange rate fluctuations

Risks associated with venture capital investments

Significant litigation such as cases in which the

Company is the defendant
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

TAKEFUJI CORPORATION and Subsidiaries

As of March 31 2009 and 2008

Thousands of US dollars

Millions of
yen Note

2009 2008 2009

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash on hand and at banks

Time deposits

Marketable securities Note

Short-term investments certificates of deposit or commercial papers purchased

under resale agreements

Direct cash loans to customers Notes and

Principal

Accrued interest income on direct cash loans to customers

Allowance for doubtful accounts Note

Prepaid expenses

Deferred tax assets Note

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Investments

Investment securities Note

Other investments

Total Investments

Property and Equipment Net of

Accumulated Depreciation Note

Intangible Fixed Assets

Leasehold Deposits and Other Assets Note

Total Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

28023 41195 285949

19847 15287 202521

13000

49992 83989 510122

861517 1195328 8790990

7914 10862 80755

96994 143998 989735

768 1032 7837

13 25377 133

15461 21717 157765

886541 1263789 9046337

10981 17179 112051

447 451 4561

11428 17630 116612

45195 46986 461173

5174 5234 52796

10126 59260 103327

V958464 Vi .392899 $9780245
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Net Assets

Shareholders Equity

Common stock no par value

Authorized 430000000 shares

Issued 144295200 shares as of March 31 2009 and 2008

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings Note 14

Treasury stock at cost 9375385 shares as of March 31 2009 and

9646607 shares as of March 31 2008 Note 14

Total Shareholders Equity

Valuation and Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities

Deferred hedge gains

Foreign currency
translation adjustment

Total Valuation and Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Subscription Rights to Shares Note 15

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

91595

23093

461

5782

3243

124174

274146

3757

403357

3374

684642

808816

94274

9450

335

6721

3223

114.003

445090

3379

4211

386256

6185

845121

959124

934643

235643

4704

59000

33092

1267082

2797409

38337

82

4115887

34428

6986143

30478 30478 311000

52263 52263 533295

105761 393367 1079194

36468 48248 372122

152034 427860 1551367

1943 1619 19827

4383

584 128 5959

2527 5874 25786

141 41 1439

149648 433775 1527020

V958464 Vi 392899 $9780245

Thousands of U.S dollars

Millions of
yen Note

2009 2008 2009

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt Note

Accounts payable

Income taxes payable Note

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities

Long-term debt Note

Reserve for retirement benefits Note

Deferred tax liabilities Note

Allowance for losses for refund of interest received from customers Note 11

Other long-term liabilities

Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities Notes 10 and 12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

TAKEFUJI CORPORATION and Subsidiaries

For the years
ended March 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Thousands of US dollars

Revenues

Interest income on direct cash loans

Other financial income

Other operating income

Costs and Expenses

Interest expense

Other expenses associated with financing

Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts Note

Bad debts expenses Note

Provisions for losses for refund of interest received from customers

Note 11

Advertising expenses

Other general and administrative expenses

Operating Income Loss

Income Taxes Note

Current

Deferred

Net Income Loss

Amounts Per Share Note 15
Net income lossBasic

Cash dividends

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

Millions of
yen

Note

2009 2008 2007 2009

V178337 V261981 V318491 $1819765

2611 3088 3248 26643

5401 5410 7181 55112

186349 270479 328920 1.901520

18062 19298 19900 184306

987 1632 1397 10071

96994 90984 13642 989735

406 4143

229662 57854 290449 2343490

4250 4853 9826 43367

46600 51077 58.737 475510

396.961 225698 493951 4050622

210612 44781 165031 2149102

766 1093 22163 7816

25435 4656 22.338 259541

26201 3563 44501 267357

V256.137 14105 V481.274 $2.613.643

U.s dollars

Yen Note

V1880.05 Vi 00.63

50.0 180.0

V3420.42 $19.18

230.0 0.51

Other Expenses Income
Loss on devaluation of investment securities Note 766 385 140 7816

Gain on sales of investment securities Note 688 377 7020
Loss on sales of investment securities Note 124 1265

Loss on sales/disposal of fixed assets 182 53 34 1857

Gain on participation in partnerships 315 548 51
Loss on redemption of bonds 10475 106888

Impairment loss Note 13 386 873 160 3939

Provisions for losses for refund of interest received from customers 272038

Loss on closing of branch offices Note 13 1896 1168 708 19347

Dividends income 698 1042 1204 7122

Foreign exchange gains 58

Foreign exchange losses 1331 2574 13582

Loss on liquidation of in-substance defeasance transaction Note 29691

Bond issuance cost Note 213 1798 18346

Loss on commitment facility
cancellation Note 2165 22092

Other net 1592 1.229 571 16245

19324 34.239 271742 197184

Income Loss before Income Taxes 229936 10542 436773 2346286
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

TAKEFUJI CORPORATION and Subsidiaries

For the years ended March 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Balance as of March 31 2008..

Dividends from surplus

Net income loss

Acquisition of treasury stock

Cancellation of treasury stock

Net changes of items other

than shareholders equity

Balance as of March 31 2009..

$311000 $533295 $4013949 $492326 $4365918 $16520 $44724 $1306

168000 168000

2613643 2613643

32908 32908

In millions of
yen except for number of shares

shareholders equity

Valuation and foreign currency

translation adjustment
subscription

Valuation Deferred Foreign
rights to

Number of Additional Total difference on gains or currency shares

shares issued Common paid-in Retained Treasury shareholders available-for- losses on translation

thousands stock capital earnings stock equity sale securities hedges adjustment

Balance as of March 31 2006.. 147295 V30478 V52263 921787 V40776 963752 9767 V1369 107

Dividends from surplus

V230 per share 32362 32362

Bonuses to Directors 44 44

Net income loss 481274 481274

Acquisition of treasury stock

Net Changes of items other

than shareholders equity 3110 2230 18

Balance as of March 31 2007.. 147295 V30478 V52263 408107 V40776 V450072 6657 861 125

Dividends from surplus

V180 per share 28845 28845

Net income loss 14105 14105

Acquisition of treasury stock 7472 7472

Net changes of items other

than shareholders equity 5038 3522 253 41

Balance as of March 31 2008.. 147295 V30478 V52263 393367 V48248 427860 1619 4383 V128 V41

Dividends from surplus

V50 per share 16464 16464

Net income loss 256137 256137

Acquisition of treasury stock 3225 3225

Cancellation of treasury stock.. 15005 15005

Net changes of items other

than shareholders equity 3562 4383 456 100

Balance as of March 31 2009.. 144295 V30478 V52263 105761 V36468 152034 1943 V584 V141

Thousands of u.s dollars

shareholders equity

Valuation and foreign currency

translation adjustment
subscription

Valuation Deferred Foreign
rights to

Additional Total difference on gains or currency
shares

Common paid-in Retained Treasury shareholders available-for- losses on translation

stock capital earnings stock equity sale securities hedges adlustment

cc

418

153112 153112

36347 44724 4653 1021

$311000 $533295 $1079194 $372122$ 1551367 $19827 $5959 $1439
cc

cc

cc
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
TAKEFUJI CORPORATION and Subsidiaries

For the
years

ended March 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Thousands of U.S dollars

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Income loss before income taxes

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment loss

Loss on closing of branch offices

Loss on sales/disposal of tangible fixed assets

Increase in reserve for retirement benefits

Loss gain on participation in partnerships

Loss gain on sales of short-term and long-term investment

securities

Loss on devaluation of investment securities

Loss on redemption of bonds

Direct cash loans made to customers

Direct cash loans collected from customers

Increase decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts

Increase decrease in allowance for losses for refund of

interest received from customers

Interest repaid Portion of principal impaired

Write-otis

Loss on liquidation of in-substance defeasance transaction

Decrease increase in accrued interest income on direct cash

loans to customers

Decrease increase in long-term deposits

Other net

Sub Total

Interest and dividends income received

Income taxes paid

Income taxes refunded

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Purchases of tangible fixed assets

Purchases of intangible fixed assets

Proceeds from redemption of marketable securities

Purchases of investment securities

Proceeds from sales of investment securities

Purchases of investments in partnerships

Proceeds from collection of investments in partnerships

Other net

Net cash used in investing activities

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayments of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of bonds with subscription rights to

shares

Repayments for redemption of bonds

Acquisition or sales of treasury stock net

Cash dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the fiscal year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year

Note 14
The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these statements

Millions of yen Note 11

2009 2008 2007 2009

V229936 10542 V436773 $2346286
3207 3487 3457 32724

386 873 160 3939

1896 1168 708 19347

182 53 34 1857

379 163 51 3867

218 121 226 2224

564 377 5755
766 385 140 7816

10475 106888

174297 320985 547751 1778540
296271 398141 511083 3023173
47004 7264 832 479633

17101 102542 466298 174500

67531 61242 44669 689092

144404 98248 100279 1473510

29691

2948 2056 613 30082

40976 15499 418122

10796 5776 9339 110165

145735 180536 117510 1487092
698 1042 1203 7122

666 5523 49163 6796
4253 1546 905 43398

150020 187601 70455 1530816

1007 1336 1090 10276
2711 2328 911 27663

575 315 5867
1499 1906 795 15296

105
24 34

684 1487 340 6980

2110 255 1.248 21530

6200 43500 131500 63265

177307 104580 1429 1809255

70000 714286

82400 30000 68000 840816
3225 7472 32908

16461 28.845 32.362 167970
203193 27397 80.291 2073.398

326 2574 158 3327
55609 57375 10926 567439
153471 96096 107.022 1566031

97.862 153.471 96.096 998.592
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TAKEFUJI CORPORATION and Subsidiaries

As of March 31 2009 and 2008

Basis of Presenting the Accounting principles

Consolidated Financial The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from accounts and records maintained

Statements by TAKEFUJI CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries The Company and its domestic subsidiaries main

tain their accounts and records in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Companies Act and in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan which are different in certain respects as to

application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards The accounts and records

of TWJ VC Co Ltd which is an overseas subsidiary are maintained in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America

The Company has adopted the Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign

Subsidiaries for Consolidated Financial Statements Accounting Standards Board of Japan ASBJ Practical Issues

Task Force No.18 dated May 17 2006 from FY2009 There was no impact on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements due to this accounting change

Relevant notes have been added and certain items presented in the consolidated financial statements filed

with the Financial Services Agency in Japan have been reclassified for the convenience of readers outside Japan

Principal shareholder of the Company

The late Mr Yasuo Takei the former chairman of the Board of Directors and the former CEO of the Company was

the principal shareholder of the Company Mr Takei together with his family and certain companies controlled by

members of his family the Family Companies owned approximately 35 million shares or 26.33% of the out

standing shares of common stock with voting rights of the Company as of March 31 2009 25.43% as of March

31 2008

United States dollar amounts

Amounts in U.S dollars are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan The exchange rate of

y98US$1 mean telegraphic transfer rate on March 31 2009 offered by prime Japanese bank was used in

translation The inclusion of such amounts is not intended to imply that Japanese yen have been or could be

readily converted realized or settled in U.S dollars at the rate or any other rate

Summary of Significant Consolidation

Accounting Policies The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries

including overseas subsidiaries together referred to as the Group

As of March 31 2009 the subsidiaries are as listed below

Equity ownership percentage

Take One Co Ltd 100.0%

Kyoritsu Estate Co Ltd 100.0% owned by Take One Co Ltd

3.1WJVCCo.Ltd 100.0%

Takefuji Capital Co Ltd 100.0%

G.H Investment Co Ltd 100.0%

6.TWJC0 Ltd 100.0%

T\NJ Euro Co Ltd 100.0%

TDS Co Ltd 100.0%

Note The dissolution of TSR Co Ltd was filed on December 14 2007 Therefore its financial position and
operating

results up until the

time of its exclusion from the scope of consolidation have been included in these financial statements

The accounts of the subsidiaries which use fiscal
year

end other than March 31 are included in the consolidated financial

statements after making appropriate adjustments for significant transactions
during

the
periods

from their
respective fiscal year

endsto March 31

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial statements all significant intercompany transactions

account balances and unrealized profits within the Group have been eliminated

The acquisition cost less the fair value of net assets acquired is charged or credited to the consolidated state

ment of operations as the case may be in the year of acquisition
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Additional Information

From FY2008 the Company has adopted Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Certain Special Pur

pose Entities ASBJ Guidance No.15 dated March 29 2007

Footnotes to the special purpose entities with disclosure requirements

Outlines of the special purpose entities with disclosure requirements along with outlines of transactions with these special purpose

entities

The Company is funded by utilizing trust beneficiary backed by the direct cash loans to customers originated by
the Company aiming

to secure access to stable funding Regarding this securitized funding activity the Company uses special purpose entity in the form of

limited liability corporation Firstly the Company transfers the preferred portion of the trust beneficiary to the special purpose entity

and then receives the fund from the special purpose entity
which raises its funds by the issuance of the corporate bond backed by the

said transferred preferred assets as proceeds of the sale of the assets

The Company conducts the loan collection service and retains the subordinated portion of the trust beneficiary

As result of the funding as of March 31 2008 there are two special purpose entities with which the Company has transactions

and the total assets and liabilities owned by these special purpose entities as of the most recent closing date is V246686 million and

V246665 million respectively
The Company neither retains stocks with shareholder voting rights of the both special purpose entities

nor dispatches directors or employees

As of March 31 200g there isa special purpose entity with which the Company has transactions and the total assets and liabilities

owned by this special purpose entity as of the most recent closing
date is Vi 14554 million US$1168918 thousand and Vi 14544

million US$1168816 thousand The Company neither retains stocks with shareholder voting rights of the special purpose entity nor

dispatches directors or employees

Amount of transaction with the special purpose entities in the current consolidated fiscal
year

Outlines of transactions with the special purpose entities have been omitted as the transfer of these assets to the special purpose entity

is treated as financing transactions

Revenue recognition

Interest income on direct cash loans is recognized on an accrual basis Accrued interest is recognized at either the

contracted rate applied to individual loans or the maximum rate permitted by the Interest Rate Restriction Law

whichever is lower

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In providing for possible credit losses on direct cash loans the Company records an allowance for loans including

delinquent loans past due 30 days or less based on an actual percentage based on all write-offs including those

arising from personal bankruptcy of customers With respect to specific loans classified as doubtful such as delinquent

loans past due for longer periods the Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts thereon at the estimated

uncollectible amounts based on the write-offs of such loans with similar credit risk ratings over certain period

Additional Information

In FY2007 allowance for doubtful accounts was calculated based upon the total amount of direct cash loans including

loans that were subject to allowance for losses for refund of interest received from customers and then the portion

included in allowance for losses for refund of interest received from customers was excluded afterwards

Data gathered for losses incurred from the refunds of interest to the total write-offs have made it possible to

identify these estimated losses separately Therefore from FY2008 allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated

excluding the amount of loans subject to allowance for losses for refund of interest received from customers

As result provision of allowance for doubtful accounts recorded in costs and expenses decreased by Vi 3273

million operating income and income before income taxes increased by Vi 3273 million and net income increased by

V7897 million

Write-offs of direct cash loans

The write-off of direct cash loans is made on the basis of evidence that clearly demonstrates the uncollectibility of

the unpaid balances Where the balances previously written off are subsequently recovered and collected the

amount is included in other income in the year of recovery

Allowance for losses for refund of interest received from customers

In providing for possible losses for refund of interest received from customers exceeding the upper limit of the

interest rate prescribed under the Interest Rate Restriction Law the Company records an allowance for losses for

refund of interest received from customers based on the anticipated losses for refund reclaim from customers at

the end of fiscal year
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Valuation of securities

The Company classifies securities into different categories each having different accounting treatment depend

ing on the purposes for which they are held Trading securities are stated at market value each market value is

based on the quoted price at the end of the fiscal year Accordingly net unrealized gains and losses on trading

securities are included in earnings The cost of securities sold is computed using the weighted average method

Held-to-maturity debt securities are carried at amortized cost premium or discount arising on acquisition is

amortized using the straight-line method and recognized as an adjustment to interest Securities not classified as

trading securities or held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as other investment securities

Other investment securities with market quotations are stated at market value each market value is based on

the quoted price at the end of the fiscal year Net unrealized gains and losses for these other investment securities

are reported as separate component of net assets net of tax and the cost of securities sold is computed using

the weighted average method Other investment securities without market quotations are stated at cost based on

the weighted average method

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is computed based on the declining balance method

while the straight-line method is applied to buildings acquired on or after April 1998

The range of useful lives is
principally

from 10 to 50 years for buildings and leasehold improvements and from

to 15 years for equipment furniture and fixtures

Changes in accounting policy

In accordance with the revision to the Corporate Tax Law effective in FY2008 the Company has changed its

method of depreciation to that permitted under the revised Corporate Tax Law for tangible fixed assets acquired

on or after April 2007

As result of this change in accounting policy operating income income before income taxes and net income

decreased by 62 million respectively

Additional Information

In accordance with the revision to the Corporate Tax Laws effective in FY2008 the residual value excluding the

memorandum price for tangible fixed assets acquired on or before March 31 2007 is depreciated using the

straight-line
method for five years from the fiscal year after the book value of these assets reaches the residual

value 5% of the acquisition cost calculated based on the method before the revision of the tax law and is

included in the depreciation costs

As result operating income income before income taxes and net income decreased by V82 million respectively

Intangible fixed assets

Costs of acquired internal-use software are amortized using the straight-line method over years which is the

estimated useful life Other intangible fixed assets are amortized on the straight-line method

Accounting for lease transactions

Until FY2008 Finance leases other than those which were deemed to transfer the ownership of the leased assets

to lessees were accounted for by method similar to that applicable to operating leases

10 Translation of foreign currency financial statements accounts of overseas subsidiaries

The balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates as at the bal

ance sheet date except for net assets which are translated at historical rates Revenues and expenses of overseas

subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the average annual exchange rate Differences arising from such

translation are shown as foreign currency translation adjustment and included in net assets
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11 Income taxes

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopt deferred tax accounting for preparation of consolidated

financial statements Income taxes are determined using the asset and liability method where deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their

reported amounts in the financial statements

12 Reserve for retirement benefits

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries record reserve for retirement benefits to employees which is

determined based on the projected benefit obligations and the pension fund assets as at the balance sheet date

Actuarial gain or loss is charged or credited to income in the fiscal year next to the year when that was incurred

13 Accounting for deferred assets

Bond issuance cost is charged to expenses at the time of payment

14 Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at March 31 2009 and 2008 consist of the following items on the balance sheets

Thousands of

Us dollars

2009

$285949

202.521

510122

$998592

Basic net income loss per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock

outstanding during each fiscal year Diluted net income per share assumes the dilution that could occur if dilutive

convertible bonds were converted into common stock at the beginning of the year or at the time of issuance if

later Net income per share-diluted is not presented since net loss is recorded and although the Company issued

Euro-yen convertible bond-type bonds with subscription rights to shares due 2018 total issue price of V70000

million the said bonds are not dilutive

Basis for calculation of basic net income per share and diluted net income per share is as follows

Thousands of

U.S dollars

____________________________________________________________________
2007

________
2009

Y481 274 $2613643

V481 274 $2.613643

Millions of yen

Cash on hand and at banks

Time deposits

Marketable securities

Short-term investments

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

15 Amounts per share

2009 2008

V28023 41195

19847 15287

13000

49992 83989

V97862 Vi 53471

Millions of yen

2009 2008

Net income loss V256137 V14105

Net income loss for common shareholders V256137 V14105

Thousands of shares

2009 2008 2007

Weighted average shares of common stock 136239 i40i72 140706

Weighted average shares for diluted net income

per share computation 136239 140172 140706

Yen U.S dollars

2009 2008 2007 2009

Basic net income loss per share V1880.05 V100.63 V3420.42 S19.18
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Marketable Securities

and Investment

Securities

Net income per share-diluted is not presented since net loss is recorded and there are no potential dilutive stocks

Net income per share-diluted is not presented
since there are no potential dilutive stocks

Net income per
share-diluted is not presented since net loss is recorded and there are no dilutive stocks

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are dividends applica

ble to the respective years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year

16 Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years consolidated financial statements to conform to the

presentation used for the year ended March 31 2009 for the convenience of readers

Marketable securities

Certificate of deposit

Investment securities

Equities with market quotations

Equities without market quotations

Investment trust funds and other

Investment securities

Equities with market quotations

Investment trust funds and other

Investment securities

Equities with market quotations

Investment trust funds and other

Market value not available

Millions of yen

2009

Acquisition
Book value Unrealized

cost market valuel gain loss

8581 7062 V1519

25 27

8606 7089 1517

4.310 3.892 418

V12916 V10981 V1935

Thousands of U.S dollars

2009

Acquisition Book value Unrealized

cost market value gain loss

87561 $72061 $15500

255 275 20

87816 72336 15480

43970 39715 4255

$131786 $112051 $19735

Marketable securities and investment securities as of March 31 2009 and 2008 consist of the following

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S dollars

20092009 2008

V13000

V13000

7062 Y12668 72061

3425 3442 34949

494 1069 5041

V10981 V17179 $112051

Acquisition cost book value market value and unrealized gain loss of marketable securities and investment

securities as of March 31 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows

Market value not available
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Marketable securities

Certificate of deposit V13000

Investment securities

Equities with market quotations

Investment trust funds and other

Market value not available

2009
_____________________

Proceeds on sales V1499

Gross realized gains 688

Gross realized losses

Write-down on impairment of investment securities

The Company writes down the book value of equity securities when the market value declines by more than 50%

of book carrying value or the Companys management determines the decline to be other than temporary when

the market value declines by more than approximately 30% but less than 50%

During the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 and 2008 certain investments in non-marketable equity securi

ties was written down by V3 million US$30 thousand and nil respectively and investments in marketable equity

securities by V763 million US$7786 thousand and V385 million respectively

Direct Cash Loans to

Customers and

Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts

Direct cash loans to customers

Delinquent loans receivable held by the Company as defined under the Law on Issue of Bonds by Moneylenders

as of March 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Thousands of

U.S dollars

2008 2009

Loans to bankrupt borrowers 48 1111 490

Delinquent loans 63763 96545 650643

Delinquent loans past due three months or more 28408 38787 289878

Restructured Ioans 67508 101437 688857

The loans classified as restructured loans as of March 31 2009 and 2008 include V62207 million US$634765 thousand and V94807
million respectively

of loan receivables which were current or less than 31 days past due

Loans to bankrupt borrowers

Loans to bankrupt borrowers are loans under declaration of bankruptcy reorganization and similar proceedings

and whose interest is no longer accrued as income since the principal or interest on such loans is unlikely to be

repaid in view of the considerable period of delinquencies of the principal and interest or other circumstances

Millions of
yen

2008

Acquisition Book value Unrealized

Cost market value gain loss

V13000

9476 V12668 V3192

25 46 21

9501 12714 3213

4777 4465 312

V14278 V17179 V2901

lncludes effect of exchange rate changes on Investment securities denominated in foreign currencies

Information on other securities sold during the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 and 2008 is as follows

Millions of yen

Thousands of

U.S dollars

2008 2009

V1906 $15296

377 7020

1265124

Millions of
yen

2009
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Delinquent loans

Delinquent loans are loans whose interest is no longer accrued as income since the principal or interest on such

loans is unlikely to be repaid in view of the considerable period of delinquencies of the principal and interest or

other circumstances and do not include loans to bankrupt borrowers

Delinquent loans past due three months or more

Delinquent loans past due three months or more are loans which are delinquent for three months or more from

the date of interest or principal under the terms of the related loan agreements and do not include loans to bank

rupt borrowers and other delinquent loans

Restructured loans

Restructured loans are loans with concessionary interest rates as well as loans with negotiated terms regarding

the timing of interest and principal payment Restructured loans do not include loans to bankrupt borrowers

delinquent loans and delinquent loans past due three months or more

Commitment lines of credit

commitment line is normally set up when the Company makes direct cash loan contract with an individual

customer whereby the Company is obligated to advance funds up to predetermined amount to an individual

customer upon request At March 31 2009 and 2008 the total outstanding balance of unused commitment lines

was 391 51 million US$3995061 thousand and Y382069 million including V204 127 million US$2082929

thousand and 221754 million in commitment lines to customers with no outstanding loan balance

respectively

The direct cash loan contract contains provisions that allow the Company to refuse advancing funds to cus

tomers or reduce the contract amount of the commitment under certain conditions As such the total balance of

unused commitment does not necessarily impact the Companys future cash flows

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts account during the years ended March 31 2009 and 2008 are

summarized as follows

Thousands of

Millions of yen u.s dollars

2009 2008 2009

Balance at beginning of year 143998 51262 1469367

Write-off 144404 98248 1473510

Bad debts expenses 406 4.143

Additions to allowance 96994 90984 989.735

Balance at end of year 96994 Y143998 989735

As described in Note above the allowance for doubtful accounts account is provided by the Company as an

amount to cover expected credit losses
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Property and Equipment Property and equipment as of March 31 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows

2009

15343

10735

93

132

12884

39187

28836

10351

34649

195

45195

2009

4120

5580

426

V101 26

2008

16020

13491

81

123

17613

47328

35265

12063

34728

195

46986

2008

4714

46556

7990

V59260

Thousands of

US dollars

2009

156561

109541

949

1347

131469

399867

294245

105622

353561

1990

461173

Thousands of

US dollars

2009

42041

56939

4347

$103327

In connection with the leases of office spaces and other Japanese lessors require certain amount of leasehold

deposits equivalent to several months rent The leasehold deposits shown above usually do not bear interest and

are generally returnable only when the lease is terminated The lease terms are generally to years with options

for renewal subject to renegotiation of rental fees

Expenses for rental and leases pertaining to cancelable long-term lease commitments for employee housing

and computer equipment are charged to income as incurred

Millions of yen

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Machinery

Equipment furniture and fixtures

Less Accumulated depreciation

Land

Golf course

Leasehold Deposits and

Other Assets

Leasehold deposits and other assets as of March 31 2009 and 2008 consist of the following

Millions of
yen

Leasehold deposits

Long-term deposits

Other
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Long-term Debt Long-term debt as of March 31 2009 and 2008 consists of the following

Convertible Bond-type Bonds with subscription rights to shares

due June 19 2018

Less Portion due within one year

Thousands of

Millions of
yen

u.s dollars

2009 2008 2009

Loans from banks and other financial institutions

with interest rates ranging from 1.05% to 4.30% at March

31 2009 and from 1.0% to 4.3% at March 31 2008 V207174 V378281 $2114021

8.00% Senior Unsecured Notes due November 12017 with

currency swap contract Note 15 3665 3665 37398

9.20% Senior Unsecured Notes due April 15 2011

with currency swap contract Note 54902 54902 560225

4.00% Senior Unsecured Notes due June 2022 30000 30000 306122

4.50% Senior Unsecured Notes due October 22 2032 20000

Adjustable Coupon Unsecured Bonds due March 2034 35011

Adjustable Coupon Unsecured Bonds due March 2034 17505

70000 714286

365741 539364 3.732052

91595 94274 934643

V274146 Y445090 $2797409

with respect to certain loans from banks and other financial institutions in an aggregate amount of Vi 0000 million and company

bonds in an aggregate amount of V58 567 million as of March 31 2009 respectively maturity may be accelerated if one or more of

the
following events occur

The amount of net assets falls below Vi 00000 million

Net assets ratio falls below 10%

The percentage of secured borrowings other than those loans secured by real estate against total current assets exceeds 80%

Since we had entered into debt assumption contract in FY2009 we treated the bonds as redeemed and transferred the liabilities

However the debt assumption contract was liquidated because the market value of the bonds fell in conjunction with the deterioration

of the credit environment and the rapid worsening of liquidity for the bonds incorporated in the structured finance transaction which

were in turn associated with the fallout from the subprime mortgage crisis in the united States and Europe

Loss of V29691 million was recognized
due to the above mentioned liquidation of in-substance defeasance transaction of unse

cured domestic straight bonds series No for 20 years

The bondholders are entitled at their option to require the company to redeem the bonds before the final redemption date if cer

tain event occurs

Type of shares to be issued common stock

Issue price of subscription rights to shares Nil

Issue price of shares V2352

Total issue price of bonds V70000 million

Total issue price of shares issued by subscription

rights exercised

Percentage of granted subscription rights
100.0%

Exercise period of subscription rights From July 32008 to June 2018

Bond put option
Holders of these convertible bond-type bonds with subscription rights to

shares reserve rights to demand early principal redemption at 100% par

value and with accrued interest until the redemption date excluding
the

date of redemption in five business days prior to each of June 19 2010

June 19 2013 June 19 2016 or an effective date on Tokyo time of

certain corporate reorganization e.g mergers corporate spin-offs etc.

Note considering for shares upon exercise of subscription rights to shares shall be payable in the bonds corresponding to the said sub

scription rights

Loss on commitment facility cancellation

The Company recorded loss of y2165 million US$22092 thousand on cancellation of commitment facility

by way of true sale and due to early repayment in FY2009
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2008

55260

174873

V230 133

Thousands of

U.S doflars

2009

363245

751684

$1114929

Amounts stated above the portion related to the financing scheme by way of trusts of direct cash loans to

customers

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term loans with banks and other financial institutions and bonds as

of March 31 2009 are as follows

Year ending March 31

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 and thereafter

Income Taxes The Company is subject to number of different income taxes which in the aggregate indicate statutory

income tax rate in Japan of approximately 40.5% for the years ended March 31 2009

Items of the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 and 2007 have been omitted as they are not required for

companies incurring loss before income taxes

The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate and the effective income tax rate for the fiscal year

ended March 31 2008 is as follows

2008

Statutory income tax rate 40.5%

Increase in taxes resulting from

Valuation allowance 77.1%

Per capita inhabitants taxes 1.9%

Other 0.9%

Effective income tax rate 33.8%

The Groups assets pledged as collateral as of March 31 2009 and 2008 for long-term debt are as follows

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S dollars

2009 2008 2009

Direct cash loans to customers under the assignment

by way of security V302003 V549834 $3081663

V302003 V549834 $3081663

Long-term debt covered by the collateral as of March 31 2009 and 2008 is as follows

2009

Current portion of long-term debt 35598

Long-term debt 73665

V109263

Millions of yen

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S dollars

91595 934643

59772 609918

88411 902153

2298 23449

123665 1261888

V365741 $3732051
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The tax effects of temporary differences which give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and

liabilities as of March 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Current deferred tax assets

Non-deductible portion of write-offs of principal amount 7467

Non-deductible portion of provisions for doubtful accrued

interest income 1996

Non-deductible portion of provisions for doubtful principal

amount

Accrued bonuses

Other

Subtotal

Valuation allowance

Total

Current deferred tax liabilities

Enterprise taxes refundable

Net deferred tax assets

Long-term deferred tax assets

Loss on devaluation of investment securities

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities

Loss on impairment of fixed assets

Non-deductible portion of provisions for losses for refund

of interest received from customers

Non-deductible portion of provisions for retirement benefits

Accumulated deficit

Other

Subtotal

Valuation allowance

Total

Long-term deferred tax liabilities

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities

Deferred hedge gains or losses

Total

Net deferred tax liabilities

Millions of yen

2009

Thousands of

us dollars

2008 2009

2945 76194

2503 20367

12966 23910 132306

259 343 2643

503 292 5133

23191 29993 236643

23178 4309 236510

13 25684 133

307

13 25377 133

632 635 6449

793 8092

16591 16486 169296

163360 56434 1666939

1462 1314 14918

109897 29247 1121398

12578 210 128347

305313 204326 3115439

V305313 V204255 $31 15439

71

1299 82
2983

4282 82
4211 82

Retirement Plan and

Retirement Benefits

Employees with more than two years of service for the Group are generally entitled to lump-sum retirement ben

efits determined by reference to their current rate of pay length of service and conditions under which the termi

nation occurs In order to provide for such retirement benefits to employees the Company has funded

non-contributory pension plan which covers portion of the retirement benefits payable to the
retiring employ

ees The benefits which are not covered by the funded pension plan are paid for by the Company having recog

nized accrued costs for such liability as an allowance for retirement benefits
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The following tables detail the components of pension costs the funded status of the pension plans and

major assumptions used to determine these amounts

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S dollars

2009 2008 2009

Components of pension costs

Service cost V510 496 $5204

Interest cost 83 78 847

Expected return on plan assets 28 49 286

Net amortization 190 10 1939

Net pension costs V755 V51 $7704

Thousands of

Millions of
yen

U.S dollars

2009 2008 2009

Funded status of pension plans

Projected benefit obligation V5788 y5507 $59061

Plan assets at fair value 1970 2073 20102

Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets 3818 3434 38959

Unrecognized net gains losses 208 189 2122

Reserve for retirement benefits V3610 3245 $36837

Major assumptions used

Discountrate 1.5% 1.5%

Expected return on plan assets 1.35% 2.3%

The Company also provides for lump-sum retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors which are paid

on basis similar to that used for employees While the Company has no legal obligation it is customary prac

tice in Japan to make lump-sum payments to directors or corporate auditors upon retirement with the approval of

the general meetings of shareholders Annual provisions are made in the accounts for the estimated costs of this

termination plan which is not funded The balance of reserve for retirement benefits in the accompanying con

solidated balance sheets as of March 31 2009 and 2008 included such provisions relative to directors and corpo

rate auditors of V147 million US$1500 thousand and V134 million respectively

10 Contingent Liabilities As of March 31 2009 and as of March 31 2008 the Company had no contingent liabilities

11 Allowance for losses Changes in the allowance for losses for refund of interest received from customers during the years ended March

for refund of interest 31 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows

received from

customers
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S dollars

2009 2008 2009

Balance at beginning of year 386256 V488798 3941388

Interest repaid Portion of principal impaired 67.531 61242 689092

Refund of interest received from customers 145030 99154 1479899

Additions to allowance 229662 57854 2343490

Balance at end of year 403357 386256 4115887
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From the fiscal year ended March 31 2007 the Company records an allowance for losses for refund to cus

tomers in accordance with the Auditing Treatment for Recording an Allowance for Losses from Claims to Con

sumer Finance Companies etc for Interest Refunding Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry

Audit Practice Committee Report No 37

In the fiscal year ended March 31 2007 with this change the Company recorded V290449 million in Costs

and Expenses and Y272038 million as provision to an allowance for losses for refund of interest received from

customers in Other Expenses Income These provisions amount to the difference between Y35031 million

including 2531 million transferred at the beginning of the fiscal year from the allowance for doubtful accounts

and 307069 million calculated in accordance with the standard noted above

12 Lease Commitments All finance lease contracts other than those by which the ownership of the leased assets is to be transferred to

lessees are accounted for as operating leases

Lease expenses on finance lease contracts without ownership-transfer for the years ended March 31 2009

2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows

2009 2008 2007 2009

141 V386

Assumed data as to acquisition cost accumulated depreciation and net book value of the leased assets which

include the portion of interest thereon are summarized as follows

Acquisition cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Future lease payments

Due within one year

Due over one year

Total

Lease expenses

t.l

at

at

at

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S dollars

Thousands of

Millions of
yen

U.S dollars

2009 2008 2009

447

443

The amount of outstanding future lease payments due at March 31 2009 and 2008 which include the portion of

interest thereon is summarized as follows

Millions of yen

2009 2008

Thousands of

U.s dollars

2009

No impairment loss is provided for leased assets

V4

13 Impairment Loss and

Loss on Closing of

Branch Offices

V4

Loss on closing of branch offices of Vi 605 million US$16378 thousand which was paid during FY2009 and

V291 million US$2969 thousand to be paid for the next fiscal year were recorded due to the decision made for

the cease of manned and unmanned branch offices and reorganization of regional branches etc
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Impairment loss of 21 million US$2153 thousand for the telephone rights
related to closing of branch

offices in FY2009 and 172 million US$735 thousand accrued related to the closing for the next fiscal year were

posted

In addition due to the consecutive decline in land prices for part of the assets for rent and etc the carrying

amount of those assets were written down to the value that is estimated to be recoverable resulting in impair

ment loss amounting 1103 million US$1051 thousand for FY2009

In FY2008 loss on closing of branch offices of 11168 million was recorded due to the closure of 69 manned

branch offices Impairment losses were accrued amounting to 1141 million for branch office closure as well as

for 1392 million telephone rights

In addition due to the serious deterioration of profitability and the consecutive declines in land prices for

part of the assets for rent and etc the carrying amount of those assets was written down to the value that was

estimated to be recoverable resulting in an impairment loss amounting to 1340 million

In FY2007 loss on closing of branch offices of 1708 million was recorded due to the closure of 111 unmanned

branches and 92 manned branches Additionally an impairment loss amounting to 1113 million was accrued for

branch office closure

14 Shareholders Equity Treasury Stock

The Board of Directors meeting held on June 27 2008 passed resolution cancelling 3000000 shares of trea

sury stock and the acquisition of maximum of 3000000 shares for total of 17000 million US$71429

thousand in accordance with the Companies Act

On June 30 2008 The Company cancelled 3000000 shares of treasury stock amounting to 115005 million

US$1 53112 thousand The number of issued shares outstanding after cancellation was 144295200

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 the Company acquired an aggregate of 2729000 shares of its

common stock for total purchase amount of 13225 million US$32908 thousand

Retained earnings

The Japanese Companies Act provided that an amount equivalent to at least 10% of dividends from retained

earnings must be appropriated as legal reserve until the reserve balance reaches 25% of common stock The

Companys legal reserve amount included in retained earnings was 17619 million US$77745 thousand and

17619 million as of March 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Under the Japanese Companies Act companies are

allowed to draw down portion of the statutory reserve additional paid-in capital and legal reserve amount in

excess of 25% of common stock The excess portion may be available for dividends provided that certain proce

dures required under the Japanese Companies Act have been taken and shareholders approval was obtained at

the shareholders meeting

15 Stock Options FY2009 from April
2008 to March 31 2009

Amount and account of stock options expensed in FY2009

Other of other operating expenses 1101 million $1031 thousand

Summary and changes of stock options

Stock options granted in fiscal year ended March 31 2008

Outline of stock options
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Title and number of grantees Employees of the Company2507

Type and number of stock optionsNote Common stocks536750 shares

Grant date November 29 2007

Conditions for vesting Grantees are required to remain directors corporate auditors

or employees of the Company or in other similar positions

until stock options are exercised

Requisite service period No requisite service periods have been specified

Exercise period From November 2009 to November 2011

Note The number of stock options is presented as the number equivalent to common stocks

Stock options granted and changes

The details of stock options existed in the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 are given below The number of stock

options is presented as the number equivalent to common stocks

Number of stock options

Before vested shares

Previous fiscal year end 521100

Granted

Forfeited 50800

Vested

Outstanding 470300

Price information

Yen U.S dollars

Exercise price 2825 $28.83

Average exercise price

Fair assessed value at the grant date 517 5.28

Stock options granted in fiscal year ended March 31 2009

Outline of stock options

Title and number of grantees Directors of the Company12

Type and number of stock optionste Common stocks27400 shares

Grant date August 12 2008

Conditions for vesting Grantees are required to remain directors of the Company or

in other similar positions until stock options are exercised

Requisite service period No requisite service periods have been specified

Exercise period From August 13 2010 to August 12 2012

Note The number of stock options is presented as the number equivalent to common stocks

Stock options granted and changes

The details of stock options existed in the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 are given below The number of stock

options is presented as the number equivalent to common stocks
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Number of stock options

Before vested Shares

Previous fiscal year end

Granted 27400

Forfeited 2500

Vested

Outstanding 24900

Price information

Exercise price

Average exercise price

Fair assessed value at the grant date

Valuation technique used for method of estimating the fair assessed value of the stock options

Valuation technique used for Method of estimating the fair assessed value of the stock options is as follows

Stock options granted in fiscal year ended March 31 2008

Valuation technique Black-Scholes option-pricing model

Principal parameters used in the option-pricing model were as follows

Share price volatilityte 39.42%

Estimated remaining period until maturityNote years

Expected dividendswte3 180 yen per share US$1.8 per share

Risk-free interest ratete 0.84%

Notes The expected volatility was calculated based on the actual stock prices during three years from December 2004 to November

2007

The average expected life could not be estimated rationally because of insufficient data As result it was estimated assuming

that the options would be exercised at the mid point of the exercise period

Expected dividends were given based on the expected dividends for the fiscal year ended March 2008

The risk-free interest rate used is the rate of Japanese government bond yield corresponding to the
average expected life

Stock options granted in fiscal year ended March 31 2009

Valuation technique Black-Scholes option-pricing model

Principal parameters used in the option-pricing model were as follows

Share price volatilitysote 41.67%

Estimated remaining period until maturityNote2.. years

Expected dividendsie 60 yen per share US$0.6 per share

Risk-free interest rateNote4 0.84%

Notes The expected volatility was calculated based on the actual stock prices during three years from September 2005 to August

2008

The average expected life could not be estimated rationally because of insufficient data As result it was estimated assuming

that the options would be exercised at the mid point of the exercise period

Expected dividends were given based on the expected dividends for the fiscal
year

ended March 2009

The risk-free interest rate used is the rate of Japanese government bond yield corresponding to the
average expected life

Method of estimating the number of stock options vested

method that reflects the average employee turnover rate over the past three years has been adopted to ratio

nally estimate the number of stock options that will be forfeited in the future

Yen U.S dollars

V1507 $15.38

339 3.46

76 TAKEFUJI CORPORATON



LU

LU

FY2008 from April 2007 to March 31 2008

Amount and account of stock options expensed in FY2008

Other of other operating expenses Y41 million

Summary and changes of stock options

Stock options granted in fiscal year ended March 31 2008

Outline of stock options

Title and number of grantees Employees of the Company2507

Type and number of stock optionste Common stocks536750 shares

Grant date November 29 2007

Conditions for vesting Grantees are required to remain directors corporate auditors

or employees of the Company or in other similar positions

until stock options are exercised

Requisite service period No requisite service periods have been specified

Exercise period From November 2009 to November 2011

Note The number of stock
options

is presented as the number equivalent to common stocks

Stock options granted and changes

The details of stock options existed in the fiscal year ended March 31 2008 are given below The number of stock

options is presented as the number equivalent to common stocks

Number of stock options

Before vested Shares

Previous fiscal year end

Granted 536750

Forfeited 15650

Vested

Outstanding 521100

Price information

YenI

Exercise price y2825

Average exercise price

Fair assessed value at the grant date 517

Valuation technique used for method of estimating the fair assessed value of the stock options

Stock options granted in the fiscal year under review were valuated using the following valuation technique

Stock options granted in fiscal year ended March 31 2008

Valuation technique Black-Scholes option-pricing model
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Principle parameters used in the option-pricing model were as follows

Share price volatility0ie
39.42%

Estimated remaining period until maturityNote years

Expected dividends0te 180 yen per share

Risk-free interest rate501e4i 0.84%

Notes The expected volatility was calculated based on the actual stock prices during
three

years
from December 2004 to November 2007

The average expected life could not be estimated rationally because of insufficient data As result it was estimated assuming

that the options would be exercised at the mid point of the exercise period

Expected dividends were given
based on the expected dividends for the fiscal

year
ended March 2008

The risk-free interest rate used is the rate of Japanese government bond yield corresponding to the average expected life

Method of estimating the number of stock options vested

method that reflects the average employee turnover rate over the past three years has been adopted to ratio

nally estimate the number of stock options that will be forfeited in the future

FY2007 from April 2006 to March 31 2007

The Company had no stock option in FY2007

16 Derivative Financial

Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments which comprise interest rate swap and currency swap agree

ments to reduce its exposure to market risks from fluctuations in interest rate foreign currency exchange and

market price of bonds against bonds and loans The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instru

ments for trading purposes

The Company considers that there is no significant credit risk arising from default by counterparties as they

are major financial institutions in the international financial market

All derivative transactions that the Company enters into are approved by the Board of Directors and under

admInistration of the finance department of the Company The conditions and results of such transactions are

reported timely to the Board of Directors With regard to interest rate swap and currency swap agreements the

Company uses the deferral method based on the short-cut method assuming that there is no ineffectiveness in

the hedging relationship between hedged items and hedging instruments For the years ended March 31 2009

and 2008 contractual values or notional amounts fair value and unrealized gains/losses of derivative transactions

related to foreign currency and interest rate are not required to be presented because those derivative transac

tions are accounted for as hedge

For the years ended March 31 2009 and 2008 contract amounts fair values and unrealized gains/losses of

derivative transactions related to bond prices are as follows

Millions of
yen

2009

Bond option contract

Buy Call option 20000

1661

Total V120000

Option fees are shown in the parenthesis
below the contract amounts

yi 20000

1661

20000

Contract amounts

over one year

Unrealized

qains/lossesContract amounts Fair values

Bond option contract

Buy Call option

Total

Thousands of U.S dotars

2009

Contract amounts Unrealized

Contract amounts over one year Fair values gains/losses

Bond option contract

Buy Call option

Total

Millions of yen

2008

Contract amounts Unrealized

Contract amounts over one year
Fair values gains/losses

1661

V1661
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17 Related Party

Tansactions

Transactions between related
parties during FY2009

Additional Information

From FY2009 we have adopted the Accounting Standard for Related Party Disclosures ASBJ Statement No.11

dated October 17 2006 and the Guidance on Accounting Standard for Related Party Disclosures ASBJ Guidance

No.13 dated October 17 2006

These adoptions caused no change in the scope of disclosure

Directors and primary individual shareholders etc

Attribution Companies of which directors and their relatives have the majority of the voting rights

including their subsidiaries

Relationship Outstanding
Ratio of

Amount balance atBusiness

Name Address Capital voting Directors
Transactions Account

or post

rights held
involved

Business
transucted the end of

the fiscal
year

Prepaid
million

yb million
Direct 5.7% V53 million

Real

Daio
Tokyo ___________

Additional Use of
Payment

expense US$40.81
estate for use of

Co Ltd Suginami-ku Indirect
post facility

___________
US$102041

rent

0.1%
facility

US$540816

Account Vi million

payable us$10204

Notes Consumption taxes are included in the transactions

All conditions and methods of the transactions mentioned above are determined by the same way as general transactions in

consideration of market supply and demand as well as the trend of market prices and others

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights of Daio Co Ltd directly or indirectly

Transactions between related parties during FY2008

Directors and primary individual shareholders etc

Attribution Directors and their relatives

Relationship outstanding
Ratio of

Amount balance atBusiness

Name Address Capital ooting Directors
Transactions

transacfed

Account
the end ofor post

rights held
involved

Business

the fiscal year

Representative
Direct 5.0% V40 million

Taketeru director Condolence
Indirect

Takei senior managing money
5.7%

director

Attribution Companies of which directors and their relatives have the majority of the voting rights

including their subsidiaries

Relationship Outstanding
Ratio of

Business Amount balance at

Name Address Capital voting Directors Transactions Account
transacted the end ofor post

rights held
involoed

Business

the fiscal year

Direct 5.4% Proceed of

V48 million
Real

sale of landMarutake Tokyo
V6 million estate

Sangyo Ltd Suginami-ku Indirect Gain on
rent V13 million

2.3% saleof land

Direct 5.6% Prepaid

Real Additional Payment
V4 million

Use of expenseDaio Tokyo
V10 million estate

post
for use of V53 million

Co Ltd Suginami-ku Indirect facility

rent facility

Account
Vi million

0.0%
payable

Prepaid
Rent Rent V2 million VO million

Real expense

Tokyo
Yb million estate Direct 0.1% GuaranteeSafeman Ltd

Shinluku-ku Guarantee Guarantee
rent

money V2 million

money money
deposited

Real

Kyoei Tokyo
V10 million estate Direct 0.0% Rent Rent V2 million

Co Ltd
Suginami-ku

rent
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Notes Consumption taxes are included in the transactions

All conditions and methods of the transactions mentioned above are determined by the same way as general transactions in

consideration of market supply and demand as well as the trend of market prices and others

The rent agreement with Kyoei Co Ltd was ended due to the closure of branch office

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights of Safeman Ltd indirectly through Maru

take Sangyo Ltd

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights of Kyoei Co Ltd indirectly through Dato

Co Ltd and Marutake Sangyo Ltd

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights
of Daio Co Ltd and Marutake Sangyo

Ltd
directly or indirectly

Transactions between related parties during FY2007

Directors and primary individual shareholders etc

Attribution Companies of which directors and their relatives have the majority of the voting rights

including their subsidiaries

OutstandingRelationship

balance at

Ratio of

Amount
Account

the end of

Business

Transactions

transacted

voting DirectorsName Address Capital

or P05t

rights held
involved

Business

the fiscal
year

Prepaid
million

Direct 5.5%
Additional Payment

expense
Real

Daio Tokyo
V10 million estate

Indirect
post

for use of V51 million

Account
Vi million

Co Ltd Suginami-ku
rent facility

payable0.0%

Prepaid
VO millionRent Rent V2 million

expenseReal

Tokyo
V10 million estate Direct 0.1%

Guarantee Guarantee

GuaranteeSafernan Ltd

Shinjuku-ku
rent money V2 million

money money
deposited

Rent Rent V4 million VO million
Real

Kyoei Tokyo
ViO million estate Direct 0.0%

Guarantee Guarantee
V7 millionCo Ltd

Suginami-ku
rent

money money

Notes Comsumption taxes are included in the transactions

All conditions and methods of the transactions mentioned above are determined by the same way as general transactions in

consideration of market supply
and demand as well as the trend of market prices and others

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights of Safeman Ltd indirectly through Maru

take Sangyo Ltd

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights of Kyoei Co Ltd indirectly through Daio

Co Ltd and Marutake Sangyo Ltd

Taketeru Takei director of the Company and his relatives have 100% of voting rights of Daio Co Ltd and Marutake Sangyo

Ltd directly or indirectly

19 Subsequent Events

18 Segment information The Groups operations by business segment for the years ended March 31 2009 2008 and 2007 have not been

disclosed as the Groups business other than Financial services was immaterial

Geographical segment information and overseas sales have been omitted as such sales were immaterial

The appropriation of retained earnings of the Company for the year ended March 31 2009 which was proposed by the

Board of Directors was approved at the General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 26 2009 is as follows

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.s dollars

Appropriations

Cash dividends 20 per share y2698 $27531

Total y2698 $27531
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

ERNST YOUNG Ernst

2-2-3 Uchisawai-cho

Chiyoda-ku Tokyo Japan 100-0011

Tel 8133503 1100

Fax 8133503 1197

The Board of Directors

Takefuji Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Takefuji Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

as of March 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in net assets and

cash flows for the years then ended all expressed in yen These financial statements are the responsibility of the Com
panys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits The

consolidated statements of operations changes in net assets and cash flows for the year ended March 31 2007 were

audited by other auditors whose report dated June 28 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated finan

cial position of Takefuji Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries at March 31 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated

results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles gen

erally accepted in Japan

The U.S dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March

31 2009 are presented solely for convenience Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S dollar

amounts and in our opinion such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 13

June 29 2009
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ORGANIZATION CHART/CORPORATE DATA

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

President

Head Office

15-1 Nishi-Shinjuku 8-chome

Shinjuku-ku Tokyo 163-8654 Japan

Date of Establishment

January 1966

Capital Stock

30477.9 million

Business

Consumer Finance

Number of Branch Offices

1051 including 840 unmanned branch

offices and Internet office

Number of Employees

2415 Full-time Non-Consolidated

Consolidated Subsidiaries

Take One Co Ltd

Kyoritsu
Estate Co Ltd

TWJ VC Co Ltd

Takefup Capital Co Ltd

G.H Investment Co Ltd

TWJ Co Ltd

TWJ Euro Co Ltd

TDS Co Ltd

Internet Website

http//www.takefuji.co.jp/corp_el

Shareholder Register Manager

Mizuho Trust and Banking Co Ltd

2-1 Yaesu 1-chome Chuo-ku

Tokyo 103-8670 Japan

Compliance

Administrative Dept

Credit Card Business Dept

Board of

Corporate Auditors

CSR Promotion Office

Customer Relations Office

Corporate Planning Dept

Cost Performance Dept

Legal Dept

Examination Dept

Accounting Dept

Finance Dept

--

Internal Control Office

Investor Relations Office

1st Loan Administration

Dept

2nd Loan Administration

Dept

3rd Loan Administration

Dept

lnformation is current as of March 31 2009 except for organization chart as of June 26 2009
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